
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Please note refreshments are available in the room from 5.30pm 
 

Agenda 
 
1. Introduction and Apologies    

 To note who is attending and any apologies for absence. 
 
2. Notes of the Meetings held on 12 June and 26 July 2012   (Pages 1 - 116) 

 To agree for accuracy the notes of the meetings. 
 
3. Matters Arising from the Notes of the Meeting held on 

12 June and 26 July 2012 (10 mins)   
 

 To receive an update from the matters arising from the notes of the meetings. 
 
4. What our Elected Members Have Been Doing (10 mins)   (Verbal Report) 

 County Councillor Tony Winder 
 
To note feedback from work undertaken by the Chair of the Board and our Elected 
Members including Members' visits. 

 
What have our Young People been doing? 
 
5. CoPE (Certificate of Personal Effectiveness) (15 mins)   (Verbal Report) 

 Gwen Monk, Mark Robson and Young People 
 
To receive a presentation on the CoPE scheme which is a tool used to engage 
young people in accessing education as a positive thing. 

 
6. LINX (Lancashire's Children in Care Council) (15 mins)    

 Young People and Laura Goodfellow 
 
To receive feedback on the work our young people have been doing. 

 
What Do We Need To Know? 
 
7. Assisted Boarding Conference (5 mins)   (Verbal Report) 

 Sue Parr 
 
To receive feedback from the conference. 

 
 
 

Corporate Parenting Board 
Thursday, 6th September, 2012 at 6.00 pm  

Oak Room, Woodlands Conferencing Centre, Southport Road, Chorley, PR7 1QR 



8. Government's Adoption Plan (5 mins)   (Pages 117 - 120) 

 Anne-Marie Ranson 
 

To note the attached briefing note on the Government's Adoption Action Plan and 
Lancashire's response to it. 

 
9. Inspection Framework (30 mins)    

 Tony Morrissey 
 

To work in groups to discuss the Inspection Framework. 
 
10. Performance Indicators (5 mins)   (Pages 121 - 128) 

 Debbie Duffell 
 

To note Lancashire's performance indicators. 
 

What More Do We Want to Do As A Board? 
 
11. Feedback from the Young People's Corporate Parenting 

Board held on 26 July 2012 (10 mins)   
 

 Young People and Laura Goodfellow 
 

To receive feedback from the young people on how they felt the meeting on 26 
July 2012 had gone and how they would like to see future meetings progressing 
and what they would do differently. 

 
12. Action Plan (5 mins)   (Verbal Report) 

 CC Winder/Louise Taylor 
 

To note the priorities for 2013. 
 
13. What's Changed Tool (5 mins)   (Verbal Report) 

 Young People 
 

To note the tool and as a Board agree to its use for future meetings. 
 
14. Grant Funding Applications Process (5 mins)   (Verbal Report) 

 Young People and Laura Goodfellow 
 

To look at ways of improving the process and involving young people in the 
decision making of the applications. 

 
15. Date and Time of Next Meeting    

 Tuesday, 4 December 2012 at 6.00pm in Cabinet Room 'C', County Hall, Preston, 
PR1 8RJ. 

 

Information Item 
16. Grant Funding Applications   (Pages 129 - 138) 

 To note the document attached. 



 





 
 

1 
 

Lancashire County Council 
 

Corporate Parenting Board 
 

Minutes of the Meeting held on Tuesday, 12th June, 2012 at 6.00 pm in 
Cabinet Room 'C' - County Hall, Preston 

 
 
Present: Members  
   
 County Councillor Tony 

Winder 
- Lancashire County Council 

 County Councillor 
Margaret Brindle 

- Lancashire County Council 

 County Councillor Mrs 
Pat Case 

- Lancashire County Council 

 County Councillor 
Carolyn Evans 

- Lancashire County Council 

 County Councillor Stan 
Leadbetter 

- Lancashire County Council 

 County Councillor 
Jennifer Mein 

- Lancashire County Council 

 Louise Taylor - Director for Specialist Services, DCYP, LCC 
 Amy - Central CiCC Rep 
 Tasha - Central CiCC Rep 
 Kris - Central CiCC Rep 
 Michelle - East CiCC Rep 
 Liam - East CiCC Rep 
 Co-opted members  
   
 Katherine Ashworth - representing Young People's Service, LCC 
 Marcellus Couzins - Ambassador for Young People 
 Ismail Karolia - Ambassador for Young People 
 Sue Parr - representing The Virtual School, LCC 
   
 Other Attendees  
   
 Mark Elliott - Governance and Project Support Manager, 

LCC (Clerk) 
 Laura Goodfellow - Lancashire Children's Rights Service 
 Louise Mackender de 

Cari 
- Strategic Integrated Service Development 
Team, LCC 

 Suzie Evans - Communications Team, LCC 
 Joanna Hunt - Lancashire Children's Rights Service 
 Sam Parker - Governance Team, LCC 
 Julie Sumner - County Volunteer Service, LCC 
 Lesley Tiffen - representing Integrated Services, LCC 
 Anthony Moorcroft - CYP Residential Care Services, LCC 
 Graham Whalley - Young Lancashire 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



 
2 

 

 Brendan Lee - ACERS Residential, LCC 
 Chantel Finley - Customer Feedback Team, LCC 
 Rosslynne Selous-

Hodges 
- Customer Feedback Team, LCC 

 
  
 
20. Introduction  and Apologies 

 
Introductions around the room were made and apologies were noted from County 
Councillors Kay and Taylor and Paul Armitage, Lin Fisher, David Galt, Sam 
Gorton, Paul Hegarty, Mark Hudson, Hannah Peake, Jane Simpson and Cath 
Randall.  
 
 
21. Appointment of Chair 

 
The Board noted that County Councillor Tony Winder is the Chair of the Board for 
the 2012/2013 Municipal Year. 
 
22. Appointment of Deputy Chair 

 
The Board noted that County Councillor Margaret Brindle is the Deputy Chair of 
the Board for the 2012/2013 Municipal Year. 
 
23. Membership and Terms of Reference 

 
The Board noted its current membership and terms of reference. 
 
The Chair drew the Board's attention to the fact that Linda Massey had resigned 
as a member of the Board and asked that the Board agree to the appointment of 
Dr Nicky Bamford as Designated Doctor on the Board. 
 
In agreeing the appointment of Dr Bamford the Chair placed on record thanks to 
Linda Massey for her contribution to the work of the Board, particularly during the 
recent Ofsted Inspection. 
 
24. Notes of the Meeting held on 17 April 2012 

 
The notes of the meeting held on 17 April 2012 were agreed as an accurate 
record. 
 
25. Matters Arising from Notes of the Meeting held on 17 April 2012 

 
In respect of minute 12 Kathy Ashworth led the Board through the report attached 
to these notes on the feasibility report on the Education Champions scheme 
discussed at a previous meeting.  Taking into consideration all the facts and the 
other projects being undertaken in this area the Board agreed to not pursue 
further the idea of an 'Education Champions Scheme' similar to the scheme 

Page 2



 
3 

 

operated in London Borough of Barnet, but rather to support the Virtual Schools 
development of 'education champions for looked after children and young 
people'. 
 
 
26. Chair's Report including Members' Visits  

 
Members who had undertaken visits to residential homes updated the Board on 
their findings. 
 
CC Brindle informed the Board that whilst most areas of the Haven were good a 
concern had been expressed regarding condensation in a bathroom.  Brendan 
Lee agreed to take action on this issue. 
 
CC Evans informed the Board that she was impressed by the young people in the 
home and the level of record-keeping was very good.  CC Evans was 
disappointed that a recent Ofsted inspection result was given the rating it was 
because of the fact that the carpet had been reported as needing replacing but 
had not yet been completed. 
 
CC Case informed the Board that she together with CC Brindle and Winder had 
earlier that day visited Autumn House.  They were impressed by the décor and it 
was good all round.  Regarding the Home's name it was felt that the young 
people should have the opportunity to re-name it. 
 
The Chair told the Board he was giving his time on this agenda to Brendan Lee 
who was to update the Board on the new Ofsted framework for inspection. 
 
Brendan took the Board through the documents attached to these notes. 
 
The Board questioned how consistent the new framework was, the potential for 
inconsistencies in judgements and the methodology of making judgements. 
 
The Board agreed to give its support to the Local Authority in any appropriate 
challenge where the authority feels a judgement may be wrong. 
 
27. Participation of Children and Young People  

 
Lesley Tiffin led the Board through the slides attached to these notes. 
 
Anthony Moorcroft emphasised the way they carry out successful participation by 
not labelling and by making it fun. 
 
Lesley briefed the Board on the process being followed in respect of the contract 
to provide the Children in Care Council. 
 
It was noted that the Board would be kept informed via Sue Parr as 
commissioner of the running of the Children in Care Council. 

Page 3



 
4 

 

 
28. A to Z  

 
Suzie Evans led the Board in discussion as to the latest version of the A to Z. 
 
The Board noted that a distribution plan was being drawn up with a planned 
launch date of 1 August 2012.  Suzie agreed to circulate the draft distribution list 
so that it can be added to as necessary. 
 
The Board noted the intention to keep the document updated and fresh and that 
the Communications Group of the Corporate Parenting Board would be 
responsible for the monitoring of the document. 
 
29. Work of CiCC  

 
Laura Goodfellow led the Board through the presentation attached to these 
notes. 
 
The Young People fedback from each of the Areas North, Central and East. 
 
Michelle fedback from the residential weekend they had just been on which all 
young people agreed was really good and thanks were given to Laura for 
organising the weekend. 
 
30. Positive Activities  

 
Graham Whalley led the Board in some group work around positive activities for 
young people.  Graham outlined that the intention was to use the information 
from this meeting at the Contribute and Engage Children's Trust Priority Group on 
17 July and then come back to the meeting of the Board on 6 September. 
 
The Board split into groups and considered the activities young people currently 
do and would wish to do.  The findings of the groups are attached to the notes of 
this meeting. 
 
The Board noted that the flipcharts would be typed up and further considered by 
the young people prior to the Contribute and Engage Group meeting. 
 
31. Action Plan  

 
The Board noted that the action plan for 2012/13 was being developed by using 
the aims set out in the ambitions document, together with the pledge and any 
relevant additions as felt appropriate. 
 
The Plan would be agreed in consultation with the Chair and Louise Taylor and 
sent to the young people for confirmation before the next meeting. 

Page 4



 
5 

 

 
32. Friends 4 U  

 
Julie Sumner led the Board through the presentation attached to these notes. 
 
A number of questions were asked seeking clarity as to the remit of the project 
and whether it was addressing the need as identified by the then shadow 
Corporate Parenting Board from over two years ago. 
 
Regarding the view that 18 was too late to be starting this scheme the Board was 
reminded of the Independent Visitor Scheme which is commissioned from the 
Children's Society and it was agreed that Julie meet with Jo Hunt to build a way 
of this scheme supporting the transition from one scheme to the next at age 18. 
 
It was also agreed that if any members of the Board want to link with Julie to 
discuss some of the issues raised they should do so. 
 
Notwithstanding the concerns above the pilot project was noted. 
 
33. Leaving Care - Semi Independent Supported Accommodation  

 
Louise Mackender de Cari gave a verbal presentation on the position relating to 
the use of those residential homes which have recently closed or scheduled to 
close. 
 
In the ambitions document there is a commitment to exploring the use of released 
capital for conversation of current premises, to provide supported 
accommodation to care leavers or those returning for the holidays from 
university. 
 
The Board was informed that earlier that day a number of members had attended 
a regional seminar on homelessness and agreed that in the light of the 
information raised at the seminar and the wish that young people want providers 
to have quality places/facilities in a good location and to a good standard this 
proposal be re-visited. 
 
34. Date and Time of Next Meeting 

 
The Board noted that the next meeting will be the Young People's led meeting on 
Thursday, 26 July 2012 at 2.00pm – venue to be confirmed. 
 
The meeting scheduled for 18 September 2012 has now been changed to 
Thursday, 6 September 2012 at 6.00pm in the Elm Room, Woodlands 
Conferencing Centre, Chorley. 
 
35. Grant Funding Applications 

 
The current position regarding applications was noted. 
 

Page 5



 
6 

 

36. Adoption Scorecard 
 

The Board noted the introduction of the scorecard and that it would be the subject 
of an item on a future agenda. 
 
37. Showcasing of Good Practice 

 
The Board noted that the ADCS has asked if authorities can identify examples of 
good practice. 
 
It was agreed that a submission be made highlighting the way the Board has 
changed to increase the active engagement of young people who now chair one 
meeting and lead discussion in others; the pledge which the Board monitors at 
meetings; the fact that all elected members on the board take a lead for one of 
the priorities; the Board's intention to try a 'dragon's den' and speed dating 
approach to 'bottom' issues to increase creative thinking to improve services and 
of course keep the young people engaged in meetings and the children in care 
council. 
 
38. North West Regional Corporate Parent Conference 

 
The arrangements for the Conference as mentioned in the date of next meeting 
above were noted. 
 
 

Page 6



 

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\4\1\ai00006148\$2zq5j41d.doc 

Corporate Parenting Board        12th June 2012 
 

Feedback Report on the feasibility of an Education Champions 
Scheme in Lancashire for Looked After Children and Young People 
 

Purpose of the report and Summary 
 
This report provides feedback following discussions at the last Corporate Parenting 
Board Meeting in April 2012 where it was agreed to undertake an initial feasibility of 
the idea of developing an 'Education Champions' scheme for looked after young 
people in Lancashire.  If developed, this would be along the lines of a similar scheme 
operated in London Borough of Barnett, which has been highlighted as national good 
practice. 
 

 
Key Information and Questions for Board Members 
 
During discussion at the Corporate Parenting Board in April 2012, the potential for 
this scheme was discussed and its potential operation and benefits.   
 
At the meeting, there was support for the idea in principle, however, concern was 
expressed that this scheme may duplicate (to a greater or lesser extent) 
arrangements already in place in Lancashire to champion the educational attainment 
of looked after children and young 
 
A feasibility assessment was directed to assess if this were the case, as we have no 
desire in Lancashire to duplicate effort needlessly.  It was indicated that the 'virtual 
head teacher' or her representative should be involved in this feasibility assessment. 
 
 
Background 
 
On reflection of the potential outcomes of such a scheme in Lancashire, it was felt 
that there was potential for duplicating existing arrangements in Lancashire.  The 
duplication would exist around the replication of the 'champion role' itself, rather than 
in the use of volunteer elected members/senior officer, which forms the basis of the 
'Barnett model'. 
 
At this time in Lancashire, and with the support of the virtual school, a series of inter-
related developments and training support are in place (or in development) which will 
further develop our position in Lancashire to support and champion good educational 
achievement for our children and young people looked after, through a series of 'key 
adults' playing a 'champion role' (See Figure 1) 

Minute Item 25

Page 1Page 7



 

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\4\1\ai00006148\$2zq5j41d.doc 

Lancashire Children 
Looked After are 

'Championed' in relation 
to their ongoing 

'Educational 
Achievement' by: 

CLA Social workers : 
Who ensure schools  
provide effective 

educational support for 
CLA through contribution 

to CLA's PEP, and 
effectively supporting the 

CLA 's carers  

Independent Reviewing 
Officers : 

Who promote and ensure the   
views and wishes of CLA are 
fully considered and acted 

upon via Care Plans and PEPs Corporate  Parenting  
Board :  

Who monitor and ensure 
the delivery of improved 
services for Children 
Looked After; provides    

co-ordination/ funding /links 

Foster carers and 
Residential carers :  

Who act as 'Pushy Parents ' 
, through attending all 
Educational  Reviews ,  

contributing fully to the PEP 
, and pushing for school to 
provide all the support the 
CLA requires to succeed 

 

Virtual School for CLA 
Educational 
Consultants : 

Who promote educational 
achievements via 

challenging schools /DT 
Training /PEPS/PEPSA 

Designated Teachers for 
CLA : Who act as 'Pushy 
Parents ' in school by:- 

setting challenging targets 
for CLA, ensuring every 

CLA has a significant adult 
with whom they can discuss 

any problems , and 
accessing appropriate 

funding streams   

Figure 1

P
a
g
e
 2

P
age 8



- 3 - 

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\4\1\ai00006148\$2zq5j41d.doc 

 

P
a
g
e
 3

P
age 9



 

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\4\1\ai00006148\$2zq5j41d.doc 

Decisions required 
 
The Corporate Parenting Board is requested; 
 
(i) To note that it is not recommended to pursue further the idea of an 'Education 

Champions Scheme' similar to the scheme operated in London Borough of 
Barnett, but rather to support the Virtual Schools development of 'education 
champions for looked after children and young people' as outlined in this report. 

 
 
 
 
 
Report Author: Katherine Ashworth, Assistant Head of Young People's Service, Tel: 
01772 532882, Mob; 07767 248775, Email; katherine.ashworth@lancashire.gov.uk 
Date of report production: 8th June 2012 

Page 4Page 10



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\3\2\1\ai00006123\$clhiqm14.docx 

Corporate Parenting Board        11/06/12 
 
 

New framework for inspection-children's homes. 
 
 

Purpose of the report and Summary 
 
This briefing outlines key changes in the way Ofsted inspect our children's homes 
and should help inform commissioning and placement (social work and residential 
homes) arrangements for children and young people. This year Ofsted have made 
some significant alterations to the evaluation schedule particularly relating to the new 
grade descriptors.  
 
To ensure that we continue to focus on those things that matter most (the outcomes 
for children and families) it is important that we consider the potential impact of the 
new grade descriptors and its potential impact on commissioning and provision. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Background 
 
Each home is subject to one full and one interim inspection within the April to March 
inspection year; at the full inspection, Ofsted make a judgement across the full 
evaluation schedule, whereas at the interim inspection Ofsted focus on the progress 

Key Information and Questions for Board Members 
 
The board is asked to consider the potential impact of the new grade descriptors 
with specific consideration to: 

 
• Ofsted strengthening their requirements in relation to leadership and 

management. 

• That it is the registered provider's responsibility to have a manager in post; a 
failure to do so is a breach of registration. 

• Registered managers must be suitably qualified and hold appropriate 
clearances at the point of the registration request. 

• Bringing together these changes has the potential to change the judgement 
for children’s homes. 

• Ofsted state that commissioners recognise the changes as a positive. 

• Complaints or issues raised by users (children and/or families), 
commissioners (social workers) or staff will trigger an inspection. 

• Ofsted have launched an on- line questionnaire seeking users’ and 
stakeholders views on individual children’s homes, this information will be 
feed into the inspection at the time of visit. 

• Judgements made on the full inspection will remain for a year can only be 
changed at the following full inspection. 

Minute Item 26

Page 5Page 11



- 2 - 

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\3\2\1\ai00006123\$clhiqm14.docx 

that the home has made since the previous one. Inspectors are required to weigh up 
the evidence in a particular area and consider it against the descriptors (see 
attached) and all children's home regulations. This consideration will provide a 
judgement of outstanding, good, adequate or inadequate. Judgements are not made 
on a formulaic approach, but on a careful balanced consideration. 
 
 
 
Decisions required 
 
The board is asked to consider: 
 
 
(i) That bringing together these changes has the potential to change the grade 

profile for children’s homes (The Judgements).  
 
(ii) It will be more difficult for the service to be judged as good or outstanding than 

it was last year. 
 

(iii) Changes in judgements may not mean a decline in the service provided but 
may be a reflection on the raised expectations embodied in the changes Ofsted 
have made to the evaluation schedule. 

 
 

Page 6Page 12



Inspection of children’s homes 
Framework for inspection from April 2012 

This document sets out the framework and guidance for the inspection of children’s 
homes from April 2012.

It should be read alongside the evaluation schedule for the inspection of children’s 
homes.

Age group: 0–18 

Published: February 2012 

Reference no: 100195 

Page 7Page 13



The Office for Standards in Education, Children's Services and Skills (Ofsted) regulates and inspects to 

achieve excellence in the care of children and young people, and in education and skills for learners of 

all ages. It regulates and inspects childcare and children's social care, and inspects the Children and 

Family Court Advisory Support Service (Cafcass), schools, colleges, initial teacher training, work-based 

learning and skills training, adult and community learning, and education and training in prisons and 

other secure establishments. It assesses council children’s services, and inspects services for looked 

after children, safeguarding and child protection. 

If you would like a copy of this document in a different format, such as large print or Braille, please 

telephone 0300 123 1231, or email enquiries@ofsted.gov.uk.

You may reuse this information (not including logos) free of charge in any format or medium, under 

the terms of the Open Government Licence. To view this licence, visit 

www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/, write to the Information Policy Team, 

The National Archives, Kew, London TW9 4DU, or email: psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk.

This publication is available at www.ofsted.gov.uk/resources/100195.

Interested in our work? You can subscribe to our website for news, information and updates at 

www.ofsted.gov.uk/user.

Piccadilly Gate 

Store Street 

Manchester 

M1 2WD 

T: 0300 123 1231 

Textphone: 0161 618 8524 

E: enquiries@ofsted.gov.uk

W: www.ofsted.gov.uk

No. 100195 

© Crown copyright 2012 

Page 8Page 14



Contents

Introduction 4!

Legal basis for inspection 4!

Frequency of inspection 5!

Types of inspection 6!

Notice given for inspection 7!

Inspectors 7!

Full inspections 7!

Evaluation schedule for full inspections 7!
Making judgements at full inspections 7!
Grading full inspection findings 8!
The approach following an overall judgement of inadequate 8!
Reporting findings at full inspections 9!
Report contents 9!

Interim inspections 10!

Grading interim inspection findings 10!
Reporting findings at interim inspections 11!
Report contents 11!

Inspection activity at full and interim inspections 11!

User and partner views and questionnaires 12!

Communication and feedback 12!

Confidentiality 13!

Quality assurance 13!

Conduct during the inspection 13!

Expectations of providers 14!

Complaints 15!

More information 15!

Annex A. Request for information at a full inspection 16!

Page 9Page 15



Inspection of children’s homes 
February 2012, No. 100195 

4

Introduction

1. This document sets out the framework for Ofsted’s inspections of children’s 
homes. It sets out: how we apply the principles and processes of all our 
inspections; the statutory basis for inspection; and a summary of the main 
features of the inspection process. 

2. Ofsted’s general principles of inspection and regulation are to: 

! support and promote improvement 

! be proportionate 

! focus on the needs of service users 

! focus on the needs of providers 

! be transparent and consistent 

! be accountable

! demonstrate value for money. 

3. The framework and the inspection judgements are underpinned by the 
regulations and the national minimum standards. The inspections are intended, 
not only to test compliance, but also to raise standards and drive improvement 
in the sector. This will require a greater focus on improving outcomes for 
children and young people and inspectors will evaluate how the service 
contributes to delivering these improved outcomes. 

4. There is more detailed guidance in Inspections of children’s homes: Evaluation 
schedule and grade descriptors1 and in Conducting inspections of children’s 
homes.2

5. This framework and guidance remain subject to periodic review.  

Legal basis for inspection 

6. The powers to regulate and inspect children’s social care services, including 
children’s homes, transferred to Ofsted under section 148 of the Education and 
Inspections Act 2006.3 It requires Ofsted to carry out its work in ways that 
encourage the services it inspects and regulates to: 

! improve

! be user-focused 

                                           

1 Inspections of children’s homes: evaluation schedule and grade descriptors (100193), Ofsted, 2012; 
www.ofsted.gov.uk/resources/100193.
2 Conducting inspections of children’s homes (100194), Ofsted, 2012; 
www.ofsted.gov.uk/resources/100194.
3 The Education and Inspections Act 2006; http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2006/40/contents.

Page 10Page 16



Inspection of children’s homes 
February 2012, No. 100195 

5

! be efficient and effective in the use of resources. 

7. The legal basis for the regulation of children’s homes is set out in the Care 
Standards Act 2000,4 and regulations made under section 22 of the Act. It sets 
out Ofsted’s powers to register, inspect and, where necessary, enforce 
compliance with the Act and relevant regulations. It also defines a children’s 
home. 

8. When inspecting children’s homes, Ofsted gives consideration to knowledge and 
understanding gained from previous inspections, and: 

! the Care Standards Act 2000  

! the Children’s Homes Regulations 20015

! Children’s homes: national minimum standards6

! Children Act 1989 guidance and regulations volume 5: children’s homes
(and other statutory guidance from the Department for Education).7

Frequency of inspection

9. The frequency of inspections is set out in regulations.8 All registered children’s 
homes will have two inspections in a year (between 1 April and 31 March – the 
inspection period).

10. Newly registered children’s homes that register between 1 April and 30 
September will receive at least one inspection between 1 October and 31 
March. Newly registered children’s homes that register between 1 October and 
31 March will receive their first inspection between 1 April and 30 September of 
the following inspection period.

11. The timing of any inspection will be influenced by an assessment of: 

! the outcomes of previous inspections 

! any current complaints or enforcement action 

! notifications received from a children’s home 

! other relevant information received by Ofsted. 

                                           

4 The Care Standards Act 2000; http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2000/14/contents.
5 The Children’s Homes Regulations 2001; 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2001/3967/contents/made.
6 Children’s homes: national minimum standards, DfE, 2011; 
https://www.education.gov.uk/publications/standard/publicationDetail/Page1/DFE-00030-2011.
7 Children Act 1989 guidance and regulations volume 5: children’s homes, DfE, 2011; 
https://www.education.gov.uk/publications/standard/publicationDetail/Page1/DFE-00024-2011.
8 Her Majesty’s Chief Inspector of Education, Children’s Services and Skills (Fees and Frequency of 
Inspections) (Children’s Homes, etc.) (Amendment) Regulations S1 2007/694, as amended. 

Page 11Page 17



Inspection of children’s homes 
February 2012, No. 100195 

6

12. Where we judge a children’s home as inadequate, the home will have an 
interim inspection to report on progress within three to six months. 

Types of inspection 

13. The following types of inspection are carried out by Ofsted in children’s homes.  

! A full inspection is carried out at least once annually. This inspection is 
conducted against the evaluation schedule and will result in a set of graded 
judgements. The inspector will normally be on site for up to two days. 

! An interim inspection focuses on progress in improving quality of care 
and outcomes for children and young people since the most recent full 
inspection. The judgement will be made on a three-point scale: good 
progress; satisfactory progress; or inadequate progress. The inspector will 
normally be on site for one day. 

14. Within each inspection period, every children’s home will have two inspections. 
At least one of these will be a full inspection.  

15. Also, there are other more specific inspections related to particular children’s 
homes. 

Where the children’s home provides education, we conduct: 

! a single-event full inspection. These are inspections of both social care 
and education provision and are carried out at least once every three years. 

If there is an incident, a complaint or concerns, we conduct: 

! a monitoring inspection. These take place at the same time as a 
statutory inspection, if there has been an incident or complaint that 
becomes a compliance investigation enquiry case. Monitoring visits could 
also be carried out: to review any building work; to ensure that the design 
and layout remains suitable for the purposes of achieving the aims and 
objectives set out in the children’s home’s statement of purpose; or where 
we wish to gather information on a particular aspect of care or service 
provision. 

To support our survey work, we conduct: 

! survey inspections. These gather evidence on a particular theme, issue or 
aspect of best practice that Ofsted is examining with the intention of 
publishing a report on the findings. They could be conducted as part of 
either a full or interim inspection, or separately as part of Ofsted’s 
programme of surveys.  

We will not conduct a thematic inspection at the same time as a monitoring 
inspection.

Page 12Page 18



Inspection of children’s homes 
February 2012, No. 100195 

7

Notice given for inspection 

16. All inspections will be unannounced, except for survey inspections.

Inspectors

17. Children’s homes are inspected by suitably experienced social care inspectors, 
and normally by a single inspector. Where the children’s home provides 
education, or is also registered with the Department for Education (DfE) as a 
school, one of Her Majesty’s Inspectors (HMI), Education will inspect the 
educational provision at the same time as a full inspection.  

Full inspections 

Evaluation schedule for full inspections

18. The evaluation schedule is set out in a separate document. It outlines the 
judgements that inspectors make on a full and an interim inspection, and the 
grade descriptors that they use to arrive at their judgements.  

19. Inspectors make judgements on: 

! overall effectiveness (including areas for development) 

! outcomes for children and young people 

! quality of care 

! safeguarding children and young people  

! leadership and management. 

20. Equality and diversity is a critical aspect across the evaluation schedule, which 
inspectors will take into account across all judgement areas and report on 
throughout the inspection.  

Making judgements at full inspections  

21. Inspectors must evaluate all the evidence in a particular area and consider it 
against the descriptors for outstanding, good, adequate or inadequate before 
making a judgement. Examples of practice may be used to support more than 
one judgement. Judgements are made on carefully balanced consideration of 
the impact on children and young people, and not on a formulaic approach. The 
descriptors are hierarchical; a good service should also meet the descriptors for 
a satisfactory service and so on. 

Examples of practice may be used to support more than one judgement. 
Judgements are made on carefully balanced consideration of the impact on 
children and young people, and not on a formulaic approach.  

Page 13Page 19



Inspection of children’s homes 
February 2012, No. 100195 

8

22. Children’s homes must meet statutory requirements as set out in the 
regulations, and must take account of the national minimum standards and 
statutory guidance.

However, failure to meet all the statutory requirements in full does not 
necessarily result in a judgement of inadequate. The seriousness of the failure 
and its potential impact on outcomes for children and young people is 
considered carefully to determine how it should impact on the overall 
judgement. Inspectors use their professional judgement to assess the impact of 
any breach against other aspects of the service provided. 

Grading full inspection findings  

23. Inspectors make judgements against the evaluation schedule using a four-point 
scale.

Outstanding a service of exceptional quality that 
significantly exceeds minimum requirements 

Good a service of high quality that exceeds 
minimum requirements 

Adequate a service that only meets minimum 
requirements 

Inadequate a service that does not meet minimum 
requirements 

The approach following an overall judgement of inadequate 

24. An overall effectiveness judgement of inadequate is made where there are 
failures to comply with requirements and, as a result, the outcomes for children 
and young people are inadequate or their welfare is not safeguarded. 

25. Where a children’s home is judged inadequate, the inspector will set 
requirements to achieve compliance with the Care Standards Act 2000 and the 
Children’s Homes Regulations 2001. The registered person/s must meet these 
requirements as set out in regulation. 

Inspectors may also make recommendations to help the registered person/s to 
improve the quality and standards of care further. Recommendations always 
relate to particular national minimum standards or statutory guidance.  

26. On making a judgement of inadequate for a children’s home, the inspector 
must consult with the Compliance, Investigation and Enforcement team, and 
must instigate a case review where: 

! there is evidence of any immediate risk to children and/or young people, or 
breach of any conditions placed on the registration 

Page 14Page 20



Inspection of children’s homes 
February 2012, No. 100195 

9

! the last inspection resulted in a judgement of inadequate for overall 
effectiveness.

27. The inspector should also consider consulting with the Compliance, 
Investigation and Enforcement team where there is any history of: 

! previous inspection judgements of inadequate within the past two years 

! complaints against the children’s home that have not been dealt with in a 
satisfactory way 

! failures to comply with regulations and/or national minimum standards that 
have not been dealt with in a satisfactory way 

! failures to take satisfactory action to meet requirements/actions and 
recommendations that call into question the suitability of the registered 
person and registered manager. 

28. The purpose of the case review is to consider whether any enforcement action 
should be taken. The Compliance, Investigation and Enforcement handbook9

has detailed information about the criteria for instigating a case review, the 
enforcement options available, and the arrangements for following up 
enforcement activity.

29. In all instances of provision judged to be inadequate for overall effectiveness, 
the interim inspection to report on progress must take place within three to six 
months. It will take place sooner if any further significant concerns arise during 
this period, or if earlier inspection is necessary to meet statutory requirements.

30. Where a judgement of inadequate progress is made at an interim inspection, 
the inspector should consult with the Compliance, Investigation and 
Enforcement team, and instigate a case review where the criteria in paragraph 
27 are met. 

Reporting findings at full inspections 

31. Each full inspection is followed by a single report that sets out the inspection 
findings using text and grades, organised under the headings below.

Report contents  

Service information Brief contextual information about the 
service

Overall effectiveness Grade

Areas for improvement No grade 

                                           

9 Compliance, Investigation and Enforcement handbook, Ofsted, 2011; 
www.ofsted.gov.uk/resources/compliance-investigation-and-enforcement-handbook.

Page 15Page 21



Inspection of children’s homes 
February 2012, No. 100195 

10

Outcomes for children and young 
people 

Grade

Quality of care Grade

Safeguarding children and young 
people 

Grade

Leadership and management Grade

About this inspection Information about the legal basis for the 
inspection

32. The draft full inspection report is sent to the registered provider for a factual 
accuracy check within 10 working days of the end of the inspection. 

33. The registered provider or representatives must return the draft full inspection 
report with any comments on factual accuracy within five working days. The 
final report will be published on the Ofsted website within 20 working days of 
the end of the inspection (irrespective of appeals or complaints). 

Interim inspections 

Grading interim inspection findings  

34. For interim inspections, inspectors make their judgements using a three-point 
scale. This inspection will focus on progress in improving quality of care and 
outcomes for children and young people since the most recent full inspection. 
This will include consideration of progress made in addressing any requirements 
or recommendations made at the previous inspection. 

Good progress The children’s home has demonstrated continued improvement in quality 
of care and outcomes for children and young people. Where appropriate, 
it has addressed all requirements and the large majority of 
recommendations that were raised at the previous inspection. 

Satisfactory
progress 

The children’s home has maintained quality of care and outcomes for 
children and young people. Where appropriate, it has addressed all 
requirements and the majority of recommendations that were raised at 
the previous inspection. 

Inadequate 
progress 

The children’s home has failed to address one or more requirements 
and/or has not met the majority of recommendations and/or the quality 
of care and outcomes for children and young people have declined since 
the last full inspection. 

Page 16Page 22



Inspection of children’s homes 
February 2012, No. 100195 

11

Reporting findings at interim inspections 

35. Each interim inspection is followed by a single report that sets out the 
inspection findings using text and a grade, organised under the headings 
below.

Report contents  

Service information Brief contextual information about the 
service

Overall progress Grade

Areas for improvement No grade 

About this inspection Information about the legal basis for the 
inspection

36. The draft interim report is sent to the registered provider for a factual accuracy 
check within 10 working days of the end of the inspection. 

37. The registered provider or representatives must return the draft interim report 
with any comments on factual accuracy within five working days. The final 
report will be published on the Ofsted website within 20 days of the end of the 
inspection (irrespective of appeals or complaints). 

Inspection activity at full and interim inspections 

38. Inspectors focus their inspection activities on evaluating the outcomes for 
children and young people, and the quality and impact of services in helping to 
improve outcomes.  

39. In preparation for inspection, inspectors consider the information that Ofsted 
has about the service. This includes: 

! previous inspection reports 

! the home’s statement of purpose 

! concerns and complaints received

! notifications of significant events received

! Regulation 33 reports received

! quality assurance reports received under Regulation 34 (including 
monitoring by the registered person of any incident where a child 
accommodated in the home goes missing) 

! any changes to registration, including change of manager

! any current or recent enforcement activity. 

Page 17Page 23



Inspection of children’s homes 
February 2012, No. 100195 

12

40. Also, when inspectors arrive on site at a full inspection, they will request 
specific information from the registered manager or person in charge (see 
Annex A).  

41. Inspection activities will include: 

! listening and talking to children and young people 

! observing staff interactions with children and young people 

! observing key activities, such as handovers of information between staff 

! gathering views from partners and stakeholders, such as parents, social 
workers and teachers 

! case file reading 

! examining records 

! inspecting premises, facilities, and health and safety arrangements 

! discussions with managers and staff.

42. The inspection specifically focuses on gathering evidence against the evaluation 
schedule. The detail of activities undertaken and discussions held may vary 
depending on the lines of enquiry for each individual inspection. 

User and partner views and questionnaires 

43. In this context, users are the children and young people who are supported by 
the home or setting, and their parents or carers.  

44. Inspectors take account of the extent to which service providers have asked for 
and acted on the views of children and young people, and their parents or 
carers in reviewing and improving services and outcomes. Inspectors also 
consider the views of those users and partners they speak to during on-site 
evidence gathering.

45. We will use online questionnaires to gather the views of children and young 
people, parents and families, staff and other interested parties, such as placing 
social workers, Independent Reviewing Officers, and health, police and 
education colleagues. These questionnaires will be used at points in time across 
the inspection year.

Communication and feedback 

46. Inspectors provide regular opportunities for dialogue and feedback during the 
inspection. Oral feedback about draft findings, including strengths and 
weaknesses in practice, is given to the registered manager or person in charge 
at the end of the inspection. Requirements to be set and recommendations to 
be made are clearly stated. 

Page 18Page 24



Inspection of children’s homes 
February 2012, No. 100195 

13

Confidentiality

47. Ofsted takes all appropriate steps to ensure that information provided to 
inspectors remains confidential, as required by statute. Although evidence 
gathered during inspections of children’s homes is not subject to disclosure 
under the Freedom of Information Act 2000, any personal data it contains may 
still be disclosed to relevant individuals under the Data Protection Act 1998. 
Ofsted may also be required to disclose the evidence to other bodies (for 
example, the Independent Safeguarding Authority) under other legislation, and 
may disclose evidence on a discretionary basis (for example, to the registered 
person or to provide assistance to another public authority).  

48. Where Ofsted considers that any information provided indicates the likelihood 
of harm, we pass the necessary information to the local authority children’s 
services for action. 

Quality assurance

49. Quality assurance is the action that we take to ensure that an inspection is of 
the quality needed and expected by users, providers and Ofsted. We will ensure 
that inspectors are suitably experienced in the areas they are inspecting and 
that quality assurance managers are suitably experienced and skilled to 
undertake this type of work.  

50. The inspector has responsibility for ensuring that all the evidence gathered is 
robust, reliable and secure.  

51. Ofsted asks the manager of the children’s home to complete a short evaluation 
form following each inspection, which is used to improve the quality of 
inspections.

52. For national consistency, some inspections include an Ofsted inspector whose 
role is to quality assure the inspection process. During these visits, the visiting 
inspector speaks to the inspector, managers and other staff, and, where 
possible, service users. S/he always seeks the views of staff at the children’s 
home on the conduct of the inspection and samples the way that evidence is 
being gathered and used. 

53. All inspection reports are subject to quality assurance procedures. These may 
result in changes to provisional judgements.  

Conduct during the inspection  

54. Inspectors must uphold the highest professional standards in their work, and 
ensure that everyone they encounter during inspections is treated fairly and 
with respect. The code of conduct requires inspectors to: 

! evaluate objectively, be impartial and inspect without fear or favour 

Page 19Page 25



Inspection of children’s homes 
February 2012, No. 100195 

14

! evaluate provision in line with frameworks, national standards or 
requirements

! base all evaluations on clear and robust evidence 

! have no connection with the provider that could undermine their objectivity 

! report honestly and clearly, ensuring that judgements are fair and reliable 

! carry out their work with integrity, treating all those they meet with 
courtesy, respect and sensitivity 

! endeavour to minimise the stress on those involved in the inspection 

! act in the best interests and well-being of service users 

! maintain purposeful and productive dialogue with those being inspected, 
and communicate judgements clearly and frankly 

! respect the confidentiality of information, particularly about individuals and 
their work 

! respond appropriately to reasonable requests 

! take prompt and appropriate action on any safeguarding or health and 
safety issues. 

Expectations of providers 

55. For inspection and regulation to be productive and beneficial, inspectors and 
providers must establish and maintain a professional working environment 
based on courtesy and professional behaviour. Inspectors are expected to 
uphold the code of conduct, but Ofsted also expects providers to:

! be courteous and professional 

! apply their own codes of conduct in their dealings with inspectors 

! allow inspectors to conduct their visit in an open and honest way 

! allow inspectors to evaluate the provision objectively against the 
standards/framework

! provide evidence that will enable the inspector to report honestly, fairly and 
reliably about their provision 

! work with inspectors to minimise disruption, stress and bureaucracy

! ensure the health and safety of inspectors while on their premises 

! maintain a purposeful dialogue with the inspector or the inspection team 

! draw any concerns about the inspection to the attention of inspectors 
promptly and in a suitable manner 

! respect that inspectors need to observe practice and talk to staff and users 
without the presence of a manager or registered person. 

Page 20Page 26



Inspection of children’s homes 
February 2012, No. 100195 

15

Complaints  

56. The great majority of our work is carried out smoothly and without incident. If 
concerns do arise during an inspection, you should raise these with the lead 
inspector immediately so that they can be resolved while the inspection is 
taking place.  

57. Normally, a complaint can be made at any stage during an inspection or up to 
30 calendar days from the date of publication of any report or letter. Lodging a 
complaint does not normally delay publication of the report.  

58. Complaints are initially assessed by a designated Ofsted representative. We will 
make contact early to resolve any complaints without delay.  

Where this is not possible, complaints are investigated in accordance with 
Ofsted’s published complaints procedure, which sets out how providers or users 
can complain about their inspection and what happens to their complaint. It is 
on our website: 
www.ofsted.gov.uk/resources/070080.

59. Complaints should be made in writing (including by email to 
enquiries@ofsted.gov.uk) to:

Sue Aldridge 
Principal Officer, Complaints 
Ofsted National Business Unit 
Piccadilly Gate 
Store Street 
Manchester
M1  2WD. 

More information

60. We hope that you find this document useful in helping you to prepare for your 
inspection. If you have any queries about your inspection, please discuss them 
with your lead inspector when they contact you.

61. If you have any other general queries about the inspections of children’s 
homes, please contact Lisa Pascoe on 0300 123 1231 or 
socialcare@ofsted.gov.uk.

Page 21Page 27



Inspection of children’s homes 
February 2012, No. 100195 

16

Annex A. Request for information at a full inspection10

Name of children’s home:

Signature/name of person completing the form: 

Date:

Information required since last inspection Number/Date 

1 Number of complaints from children and state 
number of children involved 

2 Number of complaints from others and state 
number of children involved 

3 Number of allegations made against staff and 
state number of children involved 

4 Number of referrals to children’s social care 
teams 

5 Number of times when children went missing11

and state number of children involved 

6 Number of incidents of restraint 

7 Number of children involved in these incidents 

8 Number of staff who have left since the last 
inspection

9 Number of new staff since last inspection 

10 Number of agency staff employed 

11 Number of staff at the children’s home who have 
a first aid qualification 

12 Number of sanctions given since the last 
inspection

13 Total number of staff (employed on the day of 
the inspection):  

! number of staff qualified to NVQ 
3/Diploma level 3 

! number of staff undertaking these 
qualifications

! number of auxiliary staff 

                                           

10 Information required since the last inspection. 
11 As defined in statutory guidance. 

Page 22Page 28



Inspection of children’s homes 
February 2012, No. 100195 

17

! number of volunteers 

! number of agency staff. 

 Please list staff training since the last inspection: 

Secure children’s homes only 

14 Number of all single separations occurring 

Type  

Type  

Type  

Short breaks only 

15 Number of children receiving a service at the 
time of inspection 

Dates of checks 

16 Date of gas installations check  

17 Date of Portable Appliance Testing (PAT) check  

18 Date of health and safety risk assessment  

19 Date of last health and safety check of the 
premises 

20 Date of fire risk assessment  

21 Date of last fire drill – day and night  

22 Date of protocol with the police regarding 
missing children 

Please provide contact details for social workers and Independent Reviewing Officers: 

Page 23Page 29



Page 24Page 30



 

 

Inspections of children’s homes 
Evaluation schedule and grade descriptors 

This evaluation schedule set out the areas that inspectors will make judgements on 

when they inspect children’s homes from 1 April 2012.  
 

It should be read alongside the framework for the inspection of children’s homes.  

 

 
 

 

Age group: 0–18 

Published: February 2012 

Reference no: 100193 

Page 25Page 31



 

The Office for Standards in Education, Children's Services and Skills (Ofsted) regulates and inspects to 

achieve excellence in the care of children and young people, and in education and skills for learners of 

all ages. It regulates and inspects childcare and children's social care, and inspects the Children and 

Family Court Advisory Support Service (Cafcass), schools, colleges, initial teacher training, work-based 

learning and skills training, adult and community learning, and education and training in prisons and 

other secure establishments. It assesses council children’s services, and inspects services for looked 

after children, safeguarding and child protection. 

If you would like a copy of this document in a different format, such as large print or Braille, please 

telephone 0300 123 1231, or email enquiries@ofsted.gov.uk. 

You may reuse this information (not including logos) free of charge in any format or medium, under 

the terms of the Open Government Licence. To view this licence, visit 

www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/, write to the Information Policy Team, 

The National Archives, Kew, London TW9 4DU, or email: psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk. 

This publication is available at www.ofsted.gov.uk/resources/100193. 

Interested in our work? You can subscribe to our website for news, information and updates at 

www.ofsted.gov.uk/user. 

Piccadilly Gate 

Store Street 

Manchester 

M1 2WD 

 

T: 0300 123 1231 

Textphone: 0161 618 8524 

E: enquiries@ofsted.gov.uk 

W: www.ofsted.gov.uk 

No. 100193 

 

© Crown copyright 2012  

 

 

 

Page 26Page 32



 

 

Contents 

Introduction 4 

How the regulations and national minimum standards inform inspection 

judgements 4 

Making judgements and using the grade descriptors 4 

Summary of the evaluation schedule criteria for full inspections 5 

Overall effectiveness 5 
Grade descriptors: Overall effectiveness 6 
Outcomes for children and young people 7 
Grade descriptors: Outcomes for children and young people 7 
Quality of care 9 
Grade descriptors: Quality of care 10 
Safeguarding children and young people 12 
Grade descriptors: Safeguarding children and young people 13 
Leadership and management 14 
Grade descriptors: Leadership and management 16 
Equality and diversity 18 

Fitness and conditions of registration 18 

Making judgements at the interim inspection 18 

Grading interim inspection findings 19 

 

Page 27Page 33



 

 

  Inspections of children’s homes: evaluation schedule and grade descriptors 

February 2012, No. 100193 
4

Introduction 

1. This guidance sets out the judgements that inspectors will make and report on 
when inspecting children’s homes under section 148 of the Education and 

Inspections Act 2006.1 It should be used to inspect children’s homes registered 

by Ofsted under the Care Standards Act 2000,2 including: 

� refuges under section 51 of the Children Act 19893 

� short breaks services 

� boarding schools and residential special schools registered as children’s 
homes under section 1(6) of the Care Standards Act 2000. 

How the regulations and national minimum standards 
inform inspection judgements  

2. The evaluation schedule and the judgements made on inspection are 

underpinned by the regulations and the national minimum standards, and are 
intended to test compliance and support improvement.  

3. Each national minimum standard has a headline statement of the outcome to 
be achieved by the children’s home. Providers will normally show they are 
meeting the headline statement of the outcome by following the standards that 
are detailed. However, these do not have to be followed exactly if the provider 
can demonstrate, and the inspector is satisfied, that the outcomes are being 
met in a different way.  

The exception is any requirement set out in regulations that must be met. 

4. Any failures to the regulations or a headline outcome from the national 

minimum standards will be reported on at full and interim inspections. 
Inspectors will report on strengths and weaknesses throughout the report to 

illustrate how they have arrived at their judgement. 

5. Any areas for improvement will directly link to the national minimum standards 

and the outcomes they are intended to achieve (recommendations), or to 
relevant regulations or legislative requirements (requirements).  

Making judgements and using the grade descriptors 

6. Inspectors are required to weigh up the evidence in a particular area and to 

consider it against the descriptors for outstanding, good, adequate and 

                                           

 
1 The Education and Inspections Act 2006; www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2006/40/section/148. 
2 The Care Standards Act 2000; www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2000/14/contents. 
3 The Children Act 1989; www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1989/21/section/51. 

Page 28Page 34



 

 

Inspections of children’s homes: evaluation schedule and grade descriptors 

February 2012, No. 100193 
5

inadequate before making a judgement at a full inspection. Examples of 
practice may be used to support more than one judgement. 

7. Judgements are not made on a formulaic approach, but on a carefully balanced 

consideration of the impact on children and young people.  

8. The descriptors are hierarchical; an outstanding service must meet the 

descriptors for an outstanding, good and an adequate service, and a good 

service should also meet the descriptors for an adequate service.  

9. Children’s homes must meet the statutory requirements of the regulations, and 
must take account of the national minimum standards and statutory guidance.  

However, meeting all the requirements will not necessarily result in a 

judgement of good or outstanding, nor will failure to meet all the requirements 
in full necessarily result in a judgement of inadequate. The seriousness of any 

failure and its potential impact on outcomes for children and young people is 
considered carefully to determine how it should impact on the overall 
judgement. Inspectors use their professional judgement to assess the impact of 
any breach against other aspects of the service. 

Summary of the evaluation schedule criteria for full 
inspections  

10. The evaluation schedule for full inspections are: 

� Overall effectiveness 

� Outcomes for children and young people 

� Quality of care 

� Safeguarding children and young people 

� Leadership and management.  

Overall effectiveness  

11. Inspectors will consider evidence and judgements from across the evaluation 
schedule before arriving at the overall effectiveness judgement. 

They will take into account:  

� the effectiveness with which the home provides personalised, well planned 
care, taking full account of the individual needs of each child and young 

person, and promoting positive outcomes for all children and young people 

� the views of the children and young people about the quality of care in the 
home 

� the quality of the relationships between staff and young people in the home 

� whether children and young people are safe and feel safe 

Page 29Page 35



 

 

  Inspections of children’s homes: evaluation schedule and grade descriptors 

February 2012, No. 100193 
6

� how well leaders and managers know and understand the strengths and 
weaknesses of the home and have taken action to secure improvement. 

Grade descriptors: Overall effectiveness 

Outstanding The overall effectiveness judgement is likely to be outstanding where 
the requirements for good are met or exceeded and the following 
applies. 

The outcomes achieved by children and young people are exceptional 
and the impact that the home has had in supporting this progress and 
achieving these outcomes is clearly evidenced. Children and young 
people’s needs and views are central to all aspects of how the home 
operates and develops practice. Children and young people have 
consistently positive views about the quality of their care in the home 
and their relationships with staff. Leaders and managers routinely 
make good use of a range of rigorous monitoring activities relating to 
the quality of care provided, to improve outcomes for children and 
young people. They are ambitious and energetic for continuous 
improvement that maximises the progress that children and young 
people make and the outcomes that they achieve. There are no 
breaches of regulation identified. 

Good The overall effectiveness judgement is likely to be good where the 
requirements of adequate are met or exceeded and the following 
applies. 

Children make good progress in relation to their starting points across 
all aspects of their welfare and development: physical, social, 
emotional and behavioural. This is underpinned by effective, high 
quality support from staff. Care planning and practice are highly 
personalised to meet the individual needs of each child and young 
person. Staff in the home demonstrate a good understanding of safe 
working practice. Children and young people confirm that unsafe 
situations and behaviour are well managed by staff, and boundaries 
and expectations about group living are consistently followed. 
Leadership and management arrangements are strong, and leaders 
and managers are effective at tackling weaknesses and securing 
improvement.   

Adequate The overall effectiveness judgement is likely to be adequate where the 
home provides an adequate quality of care, with individual plans for 
each child, and the quality of care promotes improved outcomes for 
children and young people. Most children and young people have 
positive views about the quality of their care in the home and their 
relationships with staff. Children are safe and feel safe. Leaders and 
managers understand the strengths and weaknesses of the home and 
have development plans in place. There are no breaches of regulations 
or failures to meet national minimum standards that impact negatively 
on the welfare or safety of children and young people.  

Inadequate The judgement is likely to be inadequate if the children’s home fails to 
meet the requirements for an adequate judgement and/or there are 
failures to comply with requirements. As a result, the outcomes for 

Page 30Page 36



 

 

Inspections of children’s homes: evaluation schedule and grade descriptors 

February 2012, No. 100193 
7

children and young people looked after are inadequate or their welfare 
is not safeguarded and they are at risk of, or suffer from, abuse or 
neglect. 

Outcomes for children and young people 

12. To make their judgement, inspectors will evaluate the outcomes achieved by 
children and young people, taking into account, where appropriate, their 

starting point in the following areas at the time of placement: 

� development of a positive self view, ability to form and sustain attachments, 
emotional resilience, knowledge and understanding of their background, and 

confidence in their skills 

� health (including physical, emotional, and psychological health)  

� attendance at school or other educational provision  

� achievement at school or in other educational provision  

� making a positive contribution to their home and the wider community  

� benefiting from appropriate contact with family, friends and other people 
who are important to them 

� effective preparation for a successful transition to independence and adult 
life.  

Grade descriptors: Outcomes for children and young people 

Outstanding The judgement is likely to be outstanding if all the requirements for a 
good judgement are met or exceeded and the following applies, 
irrespective of disability, age, ethnicity, faith, gender, gender identity, 
language, religious belief or sexual orientation. 

� Children and young people make exceptional progress to develop 
a positive self view, emotional resilience and knowledge and 
understanding of their background.  

� Children and young people have exceptionally good attendance 
at school or other educational provision.  

� The educational achievement of children and young people is 
exceptional, taking into account both their attainment and their 
progress from their starting point at the time of placement. 

� Children and young people do not engage in risk taking 
behaviours that place them at risk of harm, or offending. 

� Risk taking behaviours of children and young people in short term 
crisis placements are controlled and reducing, and there is a 
positive and highly effective response to their specific needs. 

� In short breaks services, children and young people are making 
exceptional progress in developing their skills and confidence and 
accessing a wide range of experiences. 

Good The judgement is likely to be good if all the requirements for an 
adequate judgement are met or exceeded and the following applies,  

Page 31Page 37



 

 

  Inspections of children’s homes: evaluation schedule and grade descriptors 

February 2012, No. 100193 
8

irrespective of disability, age, ethnicity, faith, gender, gender identity, 
language, religious belief or sexual orientation. 

� Children and young people make good progress in developing a 
positive self view, are able to make and sustain attachments, are 
emotionally resilient, and have knowledge and understanding of 
their background. 

� Children and young people understand the importance of healthy 
lifestyles and take responsibility for their own health. 

� Children and young people, including those who do not 
communicate verbally, are able to actively participate in day to 
day and more complex decisions about their lives, as appropriate. 
Independence is maximised and promoted.  

� Children and young people have an understanding of key health 
risks and, as a consequence, risk taking behaviours such as 
smoking, drug and/or alcohol use and sexual health risks are 
decreasing. 

� The educational achievement of children and young people is 
good, taking into account both their attainment and progress 
from their starting point at the time of placement. 

� Children and young people are actively and positively involved in 
activities in the community. 

� Children and young people who receive short breaks are making 
measureable progress in their development and acquiring skills as 
a consequence of the quality of the short breaks service.  

� Children and young people whose behaviour is unsafe, and puts 
them at risk of offending or re-offending, show a reduction in 
incidents of anti-social behaviour and offending.  

� Disabled children and young people’s participation is good and 
there is access to a full range of stimulating and appropriate 
opportunities. 

� Children and young people are confident, as appropriate to their 
age and understanding, about their readiness for independence 
and adult life.  

� In short breaks services, children and young people enjoy 
relationships with their peers and access a wide range of 
stimulating opportunities to promote their development, that may 
not otherwise be available to them.  

Adequate The judgement is likely to be adequate if the following applies, 
irrespective of disability, age, ethnicity, faith, gender, gender identity, 
language, religious belief or sexual orientation. 

� Children and young people have, or have made adequate 
progress to develop, a positive self view, emotional resilience, 
and knowledge and understanding of their background. 

� Children and young people enjoy good health, including good 
physical, emotional and psychological health. 

� All children and young people are supported and enabled to 
share their wishes, views and feelings irrespective of how they 
communicate. 

Page 32Page 38



 

 

Inspections of children’s homes: evaluation schedule and grade descriptors 

February 2012, No. 100193 
9

� Children and young people receiving short breaks services are 
confident and secure in their time away from home. 

� Children and young people have good attendance at school or 
other educational provision, or make good improvement in that 
regard, and young people aged 16 and over are in education, 
employment or training. 

� The educational achievement of children and young people is 
satisfactory, taking into account both their attainment and 
progress from their starting point at the time of placement. 

� Children and young people make a positive contribution to the 
home and have some positive engagement with the wider 
community. 

� Children and young people benefit from appropriate contact with 
family, friends and other people who are important to them. 

� Children and young people acquire practical and life skills to 
prepare them for adult life. 

Inadequate The judgement is likely to be inadequate if the children’s home fails to 
meet the requirements for an adequate judgement and/or there are 
failures to comply with requirements. As a result, the outcomes for 
children and young people looked after are inadequate or their welfare 
is not safeguarded.  

 

Quality of care 

13. To make their judgement, inspectors evaluate the extent to which: 

� children and young people enjoy positive and constructive relationships with 
staff and with each other, and behave appropriately  

� children and young people feel that their views, wishes and feelings are 
actively sought and that they influence the running of the home  

� staff help children to understand why it may not be possible to act upon 
their wishes in all cases  

� children understand how to make a complaint 

� children and young people are cared for in line with their individual 
placement plan/short break care plan, and the contribution of the home to 

those plans is of high quality, and involves children and young people and 
people who are significant to them 

� the home provides a healthy environment where children and young people 

are able to access the services and support they need to meet their 

physical, emotional and psychological health needs 

� staff are proactive and consistent in supporting the educational achievement 
of children and young people, engaging with their schools and successfully 
promoting their attendance  

Page 33Page 39



 

 

  Inspections of children’s homes: evaluation schedule and grade descriptors 

February 2012, No. 100193 
10

� a range of purposeful and enjoyable activities are available to children and 
young people 

� needs relating to the child’s cultural background and personal identity 
(including disability, age, ethnicity, faith, gender, gender identity, language, 
religious belief and sexual orientation) are identified and positively 

addressed in both daily living and care planning 

� the home is appropriately located, designed and maintained (including, in 

the case of a secure children’s home, providing appropriate security). 

Grade descriptors: Quality of care 

Outstanding The judgement is likely to be outstanding if all the requirements for a 
good judgement are met or exceeded and the following applies. 

� Staff have consistently high aspirations for all children and young 
people in the home. 

� Staff consistently and effectively challenge barriers to the full 
participation of children and young people at school, in their 
community and wider society. 

� Staff place the well-being of individual children and young people 
at the centre of their practice in the home, irrespective of the 
challenges they present, and their achievements are celebrated. 

� Staff are proactive and imaginative in finding ways to support 
children and young people in making progress in every aspect of 
their lives. 

� Staff build exceptionally effective partnerships with external 
agencies and social work services and consistently and effectively 
challenge any shortfalls in partner organisations’ delivery to 
ensure that children receive the support that they need. 

� In short breaks services, exceptional care adds considerably to 
children and young people’s experiences, progress and 
development, through provision of a wide range of additional 
experiences, including peer social interaction and strong 
community links. 

Good The judgement is likely to be good if all the requirements for a 
adequate judgement are met or exceeded and the following applies. 

� Children and young people feel that staff are consistently 
concerned with their welfare.  

� Staff use individualised positive behaviour strategies to support 
children and young people in developing skills in managing 
conflict and developing positive relationships, irrespective of the 
barriers that they experience.  

� The views and wishes of children and young people have 
significantly influenced the running of the home and the delivery 
of care.  

� The home has taken account of and acted upon the lessons 
learnt from complaints from children and young people. 

� The home ensures that its contribution to individual placement 

Page 34Page 40



 

 

Inspections of children’s homes: evaluation schedule and grade descriptors 

February 2012, No. 100193 
11

plans/short break care plans is tailored to the individual child, 
focused on clear measurable outcomes, and fully involves 
children and young people. 

� In short breaks services, high quality planning ensures that 
children and young people’s diverse needs are met in each 
scheduled care episode, including, for example, how friendships 
can be supported through planning.  

� Staff positively address challenges and barriers to educational 
progress and achievement.  

� Equality and diversity issues are clearly identified in care planning 
and positively addressed in daily living.  

� Staff have the skills and abilities to effectively communicate with 
all the children and young people living in the home/receiving a 
short break service.  

� Staff work proactively and positively with other agencies and 
professionals to secure positive outcomes for children and young 
people, including education, health and the police, and, in short 
breaks services, to ensure continuity of care.  

� Children and young people are consistently and centrally involved 
in the planning and review of their care. 

Adequate The judgement is likely to be adequate if the following applies. 

� Children and young people enjoy sound relationships and interact 
positively with others. 

� Staff set clear, consistent and appropriate boundaries for children 
and young people and respond appropriately to anti-social 
behaviour.  

� The views, wishes and feelings of children and young people are 
taken into account in the running of the home and they are 
helped to understand why it may not be possible to act upon 
their wishes in all cases. 

� Children know how to make a complaint and feel able to do so.  

� Children are cared for in line with their individual placement 
plan/short break care plan.  

� Staff work proactively and positively with parents and carers to 
promote positive outcomes and, where appropriate, continuity of 
care. 

� Children and young people have access to the services and 
support they need to meet their physical, emotional and 
psychological health needs. 

� Arrangements for dealing with medication are safe and effective. 

� Staff actively promote the education of children and young 
people through attendance at school, support with homework 
and regular attendance at parents’ evenings. 

� Staff support and encourage children and young people to 
engage in purposeful and enjoyable leisure activities. 

� Staff in short breaks services support children and young people 
in accessing a range of activities that meet their needs, aptitudes 

Page 35Page 41



 

 

  Inspections of children’s homes: evaluation schedule and grade descriptors 

February 2012, No. 100193 
12

and interests and promote their development. 

� Staff are able to identify needs relating to the child’s cultural 
background and personal identity (including disability, age, 
ethnicity, faith, gender, gender identity, language, religious belief 
and sexual orientation).  

� The home is appropriately located, designed and maintained 
(including, in the case of a secure children’s home, providing 
appropriate security). 

Inadequate The judgement is likely to be inadequate if the children’s home fails to 
meet the requirements for a adequate judgement and/or there are 
failures to comply with requirements. As a result, the outcomes for 
children and young people looked after are inadequate or their welfare 
is not safeguarded.  

 

Safeguarding children and young people 

14. To make their judgement, inspectors will evaluate the extent to which: 

� children and young people are safe and feel safe 

� children and young people feel protected and are protected from harm, 

including neglect, abuse, exploitation, accidents and bullying 

� children and young people rarely go missing and if they do, they return 
quickly 

� when children do go missing, steps are taken to ensure their safety, and 
staff try to understand the triggers for their behaviour   

� positive behaviour is promoted, and restraint is only used, if at all, in strict 
accordance with the legislative framework, including the accurate and clear 

recording of restraint and the reasons for its use  

� staff and volunteers working with children living in the home are carefully 
selected and vetted, and there is monitoring of such people to help prevent 

unsuitable people from being recruited and having the opportunity to harm 
children or place them at risk 

� investigations into allegations or suspicion of harm are handled fairly, 

quickly, and consistently, and in a way that provides effective protection and 

support for the children, the person making the allegation, and the person 
who is the subject of the allegation 

� the environment is physically safe and appropriately secure, taking account 

of the needs and characteristics of the children and young people 

� children living in secure children’s homes or refuges receive positive support 
and help with their difficulties, as well as security or refuge, and they benefit 

from the same measures to safeguard and promote their rights and welfare 

as they would in other children’s homes (secure children’s homes only). 

Page 36Page 42



 

 

Inspections of children’s homes: evaluation schedule and grade descriptors 

February 2012, No. 100193 
13

Grade descriptors: Safeguarding children and young people 

Outstanding The judgement is likely to be outstanding if all the requirements for a 
good judgement are met or exceeded and the following applies. 

� Clear risk assessment and management protect children and 
young people, while enabling them, as appropriate to their age, 
to take reasonable risks as part of their growth and development. 

� Proactive and creative safeguarding practice means that all 
children, including the most vulnerable children, have a strong 
sense of safety and well-being. 

� Children and young people are not at risk of harm and do not 
engage in damaging, risk taking behaviours. 

Good The judgement is likely to be good if all the requirements for a 
adequate judgement are met or exceeded and the following applies. 

� Care plans clearly identify risks and protective factors for 
individual children and young people. There are clear plans to 
address them, and these are regularly monitored and reviewed. 

� There is evidence that the frequency with which children and 
young people go missing is minimised and, where applicable, has 
reduced over time. 

� Strong and proactive relationships with the police, where 
appropriate, support and promote the safety of children. 

� Secure children’s homes have strong links with the Local 
Safeguarding Children Board and the Local Authority Designated 
Officer and there is regular communication regarding key 
safeguarding issues, for example, any injuries sustained during 
restraint. 

Adequate The judgement is likely to be adequate if the following applies. 

� Children and young people report that they generally feel safe in 
the home and outside it. 

� Children and young people feel that they can identify an adult 
they would talk to if they felt unsafe. 

� Positive and proactive behaviour management strategies are 
consistently applied. 

� Staff recognise particular vulnerabilities relating to the diverse 
needs of children and young people, and take appropriate action 
to address them. 

� Staff are aware of the factors that may trigger children going 
missing and take action to minimise the risk. The incidences of 
children missing from the home are minimised.  

� The home has clear practices, and agreed arrangements with the 
local police, that support effective action when children go 
missing and ensures that they are protected as far as possible 
and responded to positively on their return. 

� There is no or minimum use of physical restraint. Any use of 
restraint is to prevent injury to people or serious damage to 
property, it is for the minimum period and uses the minimum 

Page 37Page 43



 

 

  Inspections of children’s homes: evaluation schedule and grade descriptors 

February 2012, No. 100193 
14

force possible. There is no use of restraint as a punishment or 
solely to enforce compliance with instructions. Any incident of 
restraint is sensitively and appropriately followed up in discussion 
and reflection with the child or young person concerned. All 
incidents of restraint are accurately and clearly recorded. 

� There is a strong, robust and proactive response to any incidence 
of bullying by all staff supported by leaders and managers. There 
is evidence that the incidence of bullying is minimised and where 
applicable has reduced over time. 

� Managers monitor the use and incidence of restraint, and take 
appropriate action as a result of such monitoring to reduce its 
use wherever possible. 

� There are suitable and safe arrangements in place for escorting 
children to and from secure children’s homes. 

� In secure children’s homes, any searches of young people, their 
rooms and possessions are carried out sensitively by 
appropriately trained staff with due consideration to their need to 
feel safe and have their needs respected. All searches are 
appropriately recorded. 

� All staff and volunteers working with children in the home are 
carefully selected and vetted and there is monitoring of such 
people to help prevent unsuitable people from having the 
opportunity to harm children. 

� Investigations into allegations or suspicions of harm are handled 
fairly, quickly, and consistently in a way that provides effective 
protection for children, the person making the allegation, and at 
the same time, supports the person who is the subject of the 
allegation. 

� The environment is physically safe and appropriately secure, 
taking account of the needs and characteristics of the children 
and young people cared for. 

� Children living in a secure children’s home or refuge experience 
positive support with their problems as well as security or refuge, 
and benefit from the same measures to safeguard and promote 
their rights and welfare as they should in other children’s homes. 

Inadequate The judgement is likely to be inadequate if the children’s home fails to 
meet the requirements for an adequate judgement and/or there are 
failures to comply with requirements. As a result, the outcomes for 
children and young people looked after are inadequate or their welfare 
is not safeguarded. 

 

Leadership and management  

15. To make their judgement, inspectors will evaluate the extent to which: 

� the home is effectively and efficiently managed, including the permanent 

employment of a suitable registered manager 

Page 38Page 44



 

 

Inspections of children’s homes: evaluation schedule and grade descriptors 

February 2012, No. 100193 
15

� concerns or complaints have arisen since the last inspection, and whether 
those complaints and concerns have been addressed and resolved  

� the home can demonstrate capacity for continuing improvement, based on 

its track record, performance since its previous inspection, and evidence of 
the impact of improvements  

� requirements and recommendations from the previous inspection have been 

addressed 

� the provider meets the aims and objectives in the statement of purpose 

� children, staff and the placing authority are clear about the aims and 

objectives of the home and what services and facilities it provides 

� the registered person actively and regularly monitors the quality of care 
provided, including consultation with children and young people about their 

welfare 

� leaders and managers understand the strengths and weaknesses of the 
home and have development plans in place  

� leaders and managers can demonstrate the impact and value that living at 
the home has had on children and young people’s lives and how their life 
chances have improved over time  

� the home is adequately resourced  

� managers ensure that the physical environment at the home is maintained 

to a high standard  

� there is evidence of the financial viability of the provider 

� the home employs a sufficient number of staff, who are appropriately 
trained and effectively supervised and supported  

� the home takes action to chase up overdue reviews or visits from the 
responsible authority, contributes to those reviews, and assists the child or 

young person in contributing to their reviews  

� staff receive high quality training to enhance their individual skills and to 
keep them up to date with professional and legal developments 

� volunteers are supported and guided to fulfil their roles and provide a high 
quality service to children 

� records are clear, up to date and stored securely, and contribute to an 
understanding of the child’s life, experiences and plans for the future 

� all significant events relating to the protection of children accommodated in 
the home are notified by the registered person to the appropriate 

authorities, and appropriate action is taken following the incident. 

Page 39Page 45



 

 

  Inspections of children’s homes: evaluation schedule and grade descriptors 

February 2012, No. 100193 
16

Grade descriptors: Leadership and management 

Outstanding The judgement is likely to be outstanding if all the requirements for a 
good judgement are met or exceeded and the following applies. 

� Leaders and managers consistently communicate high 
expectations to staff about sustaining improvement. 

� Leaders and managers stimulate the enthusiasm of staff and 
channel their efforts effectively. 

� Leaders and managers routinely make good use of a range of 
rigorous monitoring activities relating to the quality of care 
provided and improving outcomes for children and young people. 

� Leaders and managers use the information about the progress 
that children and young people make, and their outcomes, to 
secure further development and improvement in the home. 

� Planning is founded on robust evidence tackling key areas of 
weakness systematically, and building on areas of strength. 

� Targets for the development of the service are realistic and 
challenging. 

Good The judgement is likely to be good if all the requirements for an 
adequate judgement are met or exceeded and the following applies. 

� Staff receive regular supervision of a good quality. 

� Staff’s individual training needs are identified and met. 

� Leaders and managers take action to tackle weaknesses and 
make improvements, and there is evidence of the impact of 
improvements.  

� Leaders and managers keep up to date with new legislation and 
practice developments, and share these with staff to improve the 
quality of service. 

� Leaders and managers monitor the progress that children and 
young people make, and their outcomes, and can demonstrate 
the difference the home has made.  

� The home has a good relationship with the local community and 
neighbours.  

� Recommendations from the previous inspection have been acted 
on. 

Adequate The judgement is likely to be adequate if the following applies. 

� There is a registered manager in post or, if the manager’s post is 
vacant, urgent action is being taken to recruit to it.  

� If a new manager is in post and is not registered, there is an 
application in progress, received by Ofsted, within 28 days of the 
appointment. 

� Any concerns about the home arising since the last inspection  
have been resolved and the home has a good track record in 
relation to taking action regarding any complaints/concerns. 

� Requirements from the previous inspection have been acted 
upon. 

Page 40Page 46



 

 

Inspections of children’s homes: evaluation schedule and grade descriptors 

February 2012, No. 100193 
17

� Leaders and managers understand the strengths and weaknesses 
of the home and have development plans in place.  

� The statement of purpose is clear, accessible and comprehensive. 

� Children, staff and the placing authority are clear about the aims 
and objectives of the home and what services and facilities it 
provides. 

� The home takes action to chase up any overdue reviews or visits 
if overdue for the child. 

� The provider meets the aims and objectives in the statement of 
purpose. 

� Leaders and managers model a commitment to meeting the 
needs of all children and young people, including those relating 
to disability, age, ethnicity, faith, gender, gender identity, 
language, religious belief and sexual orientation. 

� There are records of regular visits under Regulation 33 of the 
Children’s Homes Regulations 2001, and there is evidence that 
children and young people are consulted during these visits. 
Reports are returned to Ofsted within the required timescales. 

� The home is adequately resourced to meet the needs of the 
children and young people cared for. 

� The home is well maintained.  

� Managers ensure that health and safety requirements are met. 

� The home employs a sufficient number of staff who receive 
adequate support to enable them to meet the needs of children 
and young people. 

� Staff receive sufficient training to enable them to provide good 
quality and safe care for children and young people.  

� If used, volunteers receive adequate support to meet the needs 
of children and young people. 

� Records are clear, up to date and stored securely, and contribute 
to an understanding of the child’s life. 

� Leaders and managers have positive relationships with other 
agencies, including the police, health services, and placing local 
authorities.  

� All significant events relating to the protection of children 
accommodated in the home are notified to the appropriate 
authorities by the registered person. Appropriate action is taken 
following the incident. 

Inadequate The judgement is likely to be inadequate if the children’s home fails to 
meet the requirements for an adequate judgement and/or there are 
failures to comply with requirements. As a result, the outcomes for 
children and young people looked after are inadequate or their welfare 
is not safeguarded. 

 

Page 41Page 47



 

 

  Inspections of children’s homes: evaluation schedule and grade descriptors 

February 2012, No. 100193 
18

Equality and diversity 

16. Equality and diversity is a critical aspect across the evaluation schedule, which 

inspectors take into account across all judgement areas and report on 

throughout the inspection report.  

17. Outcomes for children should not be any poorer as a consequence of disability, 

age, ethnicity, faith, gender, gender identity, language, religious belief or 

sexual orientation. In all areas of evaluation, the children’s home should be able 
to demonstrate how they promote equality of opportunity, overcoming any 

barriers, inequalities or discrimination. 

Fitness and conditions of registration 

18. As well as the areas above, inspectors will consider whether: 

� the registered persons remain fit for registration 

� the children’s home is operating in accordance with any conditions placed 

on its registration 

� there are, or have been, complaints or investigations that raise concerns 
about the fitness of the registered person/s and/or the viability of the 
children’s home continuing to operate.  

19. It is the registered provider’s responsibility to have a manager in post, and 
failure to do so is a breach of regulation.  

If there is a manager in post but they are not registered with Ofsted, the 
inspector will ensure that the individual manager is aware that it is an offence 
not to be registered.  

20. Inspectors will report on any concerns they identify relating to: 

� the registered person’s ‘fitness’ 

� a manager who is not registered 

� whether the conditions of registration are being met.  

The inspector will consult the Compliance, Investigation and Enforcement team 

as appropriate. 

Making judgements at the interim inspection 

21. One inspection per year will be an interim inspection. This will focus on 

progress in improving quality of care, and outcomes for children and young 

people since the most recent full inspection.  

This will include considering the progress in addressing any requirements or 
recommendations made at the previous inspection. The judgement will be 

Page 42Page 48



 

 

Inspections of children’s homes: evaluation schedule and grade descriptors 

February 2012, No. 100193 
19

made on a three-point scale: good progress; satisfactory progress; or 
inadequate progress. 

22. Inspectors will prioritise gathering the views and experience of children and 

young people as the basis for their inspection. 

23. Inspectors can make requirements and/or recommendations at an interim 

inspection. 

Grading interim inspection findings  

24. Inspectors make their judgements at an interim inspection using a three-point 
scale. 

Good progress The children’s home has demonstrated 
continued improvement in quality of care and 
outcomes for children and young people. 
Where appropriate, it has addressed all 
requirements and the large majority of 
recommendations that were raised at the 
previous inspection. 

Satisfactory progress The children’s home has maintained quality 
of care and outcomes for children and young 
people. Where appropriate, it has addressed 
all requirements and the majority of 
recommendations that were raised at the 
previous inspection. 

Inadequate progress The children’s home has failed to address 
one or more requirements and/or has not 
met the majority of recommendations and/or 
the quality of care and outcomes for children 
and young people have declined since the 
last full inspection. 

 

Page 43Page 49



Page 44Page 50



Children and Young People’s 

Participation Commission:

An Update

Lesley Tiffen- Integrated Services Development Manager

Anthony Moorcroft- Temporary Manager, South Avenue M
in

u
te

 Ite
m

 2
7

P
a
g
e
 4

5
P

age 51



Participation
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=CQzUsTFqtW0

������������	
��
�
�������
����
�����	�


�	����	���
�������	�
�����
�����
�����
�	�


����
�����
��
���	��

Individual Group

P
a
g
e
 4

6
P

age 52



How it was (is)�

• CICC commissioned for a year

• 382 children and young people involved

• Lancashire Youth Council has 

representatives from the CiCC, the youth 

council meets with the Cabinet of LCC four 

times a year

• Participation in reviews

• A variety of examples across 

Lancashire#.

P
a
g
e
 4

7
P

age 53



What are the 

changes?-
Need to re-commission�.. How?

Knowing what you’ve 

got: Needs, money, 

what works, what 

Deciding what you want: 

What features should it 

have? (Specification)

Decide most important 
����

��
�����

�����	
���people say. (Evaluation Criteria) 

Ask providers to 

design  something to 

meet needs (Invitation 

to tender)

Decide which one is 

best. (Tendering 

Process)

Check the Service is 

good.

Change it slightly to 

meet needs.

P
a
g
e
 4

8
P

age 54



The Process- 5 areas

1. To identify what they thought participation was.

2. To map what currently happens and what we do.

3. To discuss and address the barriers to 3. To discuss and address the barriers to 

participation and provide solutions.

4. To think about the current structure using the 

diagram. 

5. To consider what our Vision would be. 

P
a
g
e
 4

9
P

age 55



How it is..

P
a
g
e
 5

0
P

age 56



What does this mean for 

Children and Young People? 

The Vision.
• Children and young people will have skills, knowledge and confidence to 

participate / give their views – anonymous?

• More representative cohorts/ networks of groups e.g. sensory impairment CYP 

like to stay together

• Variety of means of communication with CYP make better use of technology –

Twitter, Facebook etc that are more anonymous. Use of iPads to participate.

• Different methods used- Creating informal opportunities- link into other 

opportunities for young people, more fun and less formal, video conferencing, be 

creative, build young people's skills and confidence, different formats of meeting. 

• The sessions/ activities could be more localised and offer a befriending scheme. 

• Ensure that CYP see themselves as representatives

• CYP know about participation- from the individual to the group and have regular 

opportunities to voice their opinions 

• CYP views are acted upon, adults trust children and Young People

• CYP involved in set up and monitoring services as well as activity

P
a
g
e
 5

1
P

age 57



What does this mean for 

Staff?
• Map and build on existing systems – schools councils, PASS, 

• Service providers working together – bringing them together. Leaving care / 

homelessness; all challenges.

• Provide transport to meetings- social workers will help with this (transport)

• Communication - capture the evidence of what's going on, one simple message to 

be shared. Be clear about when and where meetings are and communicate this 

clearly with everyone. County Managers group would be one way of doing this.  

• Training of key people in social care and education about participation- individual to 

group, demystify it

• Use the skilled workers we have who use methods that engage those who are less 

articulate/ skilled – ensure there is a mechanism for them to capture and feed 

individual opinions up, Process to 'feed up' to CICC – adults need to make this 

possible 

• Show progress, feedback and act on what the CYP agreed. Review what they have 

said. 

• Provider that is passionate/ knowledgeable and experienced; to encourage 

participation need the right person / right place / the right method and passionate 

about the process

P
a
g
e
 5

2
P

age 58



What action is needed?

NOW; 

• What do you think is important when we are looking at 

commissioning someone to run the Children in Care Council? (CICC 

Session)

• Provide report from the Stakeholder event to the Corporate 

Parenting Board

• Stakeholder Group established to support participation 

LATER; 

• Need Young People to help us choose how and who we choose to 

run the CICC? 

• CPB- kept up to date and informed via Sue Parr (as commissioner)

P
a
g
e
 5

3
P

age 59



When should action be 

done by?
���� ����

���������	��
�	��
����������� ���

���������	��
�	��
��	�����
���
�����


������

���

����� ���	�	���	��
�������� ��������� ���	�	���	��
�������� ����

�	���
���	�	���	��
������ �����
����

������
����
 	!� ��� ����

�������
�"#	���� $�� ����#"��

����
�	��	��
���
%����!	��� &$�� ���

��������
�� ��##���� &�� '���"��

P
a
g
e
 5

4
P

age 60



Children in Care Council

Work so far…

M
in

u
te

 Ite
m

 2
9

P
a
g
e
 5

5
P

age 61



Children in Care Council:

Updates

Central Group:

We have:

-Helped plan the residential.

-Ran a workshop at the Child, Youth, Family and 

Disability Conference at Manchester Metropolitan 

University.

-Ran a workshop at the Service User and Carer 

Congress at UCLAN.

-Helped develop our new website.

P
a
g
e
 5

6
P

age 62



Children in Care Council:

Updates

East Group:

Our group has grown

-Developing a newsletter.

-Decided to invite different services to come and 

speak to them.

-Going to take turns in chairing the meetings.

P
a
g
e
 5

7
P

age 63



Children in Care Council:

Updates

North Group:

We have:

-Decided to make a film around young people’s 

experiences.

-YP who live in Lancashire but are from another 

authority have requested to attend. 

P
a
g
e
 5

8
P

age 64



Children in Care Council:

Updates

Lancashire Youth Council:

-Involvement of young people from the CiCC 

continues to grow.

-The CiCC has two places on the LYC residential in 

the summer.

-CiCC representatives are strongly involved in the 

Equality and Diversity Campaign, Rainbow 

Generation and the Media Group.

P
a
g
e
 5

9
P

age 65



What was good:

‘New activities and entertainment and meeting new people’.

‘The tube was good fun’.

‘Taste different sorts of food’.

I learnt about diversity’.

‘Wicked was so good I’m not going to moan until tomorrow’.

What was bad?

‘I really hate trains’.

‘The food at the hostel’.

‘The busyness of Londoners’.

P
a
g
e
 6

0
P

age 66



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\2\1\ai00006128\$uvxjj2l5.docx 

My name is Graham Whalley; I work for a local charity and I chair one of the Children 
and Young People's Trust groups. 
 
My job here this evening; is to listen and find out more about your priorities for 
'positive activities' (what you do – or would like to be doing – in your leisure time) so 
that I can take these back to the next meeting of the Contribute and Engage Children 
and Young People's Trust Priority Group. 
 
First a little bit on the Contribute and Engage Group; the purpose of this group is 
(basically); 
 

• to make sure young people can access and make use of a wide range of 
positive activities in their spare time 

• to increase the numbers of young people participating in making decisions 
about the things which affect their lives 

• reduce levels of offending and increase the numbers of young offenders in 
education, employment or training 

 
So, we are keen to know whether all young people including those looked after are 
able to access and join in local youth activities. 
 
On your table please can you have a conversation about the support you have (or 
would like to have) to join in local activities for young people. 
 
You might want to use the following questions as prompts – 
 

• What kind of activities do you enjoy doing in your spare time? 

• Tell me about how available these activities are to you; 

• Tell me how you know what's on; 

• Tell me how you get there; 

• Describe what you like when you are there; 

• Tell me what's important about being able to join in with others; 

• What other activities would you join if they were available? 

• If you would like more support to join in, tell me what this would be; 
 
There is some flip chart paper and pens for you to write stuff down or to sketch a 
picture to illustrate the activities you attend or would like to attend. 
 
You have 20 minutes to do this and then we'll have 10 minutes at the end to share 
your ideas and thoughts. 
 
Thanks. 
 
  

Minute Item 30

Page 61Page 67



2 
d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\2\1\ai00006128\$uvxjj2l5.docx 

Flip Chart 1 
 
Preston and Morecambe football clubs 
 

• clubs and groups for YP not running as much now 
 

• libraries, community centres + IT groups not doing as much now 
 

 
Examples of activities we do: 
 

• Badminton with carers. 
 

• Half term activities– climbing, go karting organised by carers. 
 

 

• Free membership to the gym at the local leisure centre (Darwen) – very good 
equipment + TV screens. 

 
 

• Cinema club – local cinema used to put on cheap nights. 
 

 

• People enjoy doing IT – using facebook, computer games, designing websites. 
 

 

• Youth clubs not as good as they were.  Mobile youth club stopped running, trips 
stopped. 

 
 

• YP used the Fold drop in – use the computer, chat. 
 

 

• Lot of youth clubs are in older buildings or less nice areas but the Zones are 
coming. 

 
 

• Clubs, scouts, guides etc – people think they are boring, is perceived as geeky 
or like the army. 

 
___________________________________________________________________ 
  

Page 62Page 68



3 
d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\2\1\ai00006128\$uvxjj2l5.docx 

Flip Chart 2 
 
1. *Swimming 

*Listening to music 
*Cinema 
Beach – sandy + Pleasure 
Time with friends 
Meeting new people 
Bowling 
Volunteering/*Charity work 
College + Work Experience 
Residentials 
Footy 

 
2. Things like above are available close by. 
 
3. Internet → Google research – facebook and emails between friends (text/BBM). 

Sometimes leaflets and posters. 
 
4. Get a lift. 

Buses sometimes – less the train. 
Walk. 

 
5. Fun, enjoy, meet new people. 

Opportunity to do something haven't done before and learn new skills. 
 
6. Friendships.  Get to know new people + new people better. 
 
7. Would like to D travel abroad. 

Fundraising events/Street Dance/Drama. 
Adventurous activities like canoeing. 

 
8. More money D to be able to pay for activities. 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
  

Page 63Page 69



4 
d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\2\1\ai00006128\$uvxjj2l5.docx 

Flip Chart 3 
 
Listening to music – ear phones, phone, MP3 IPOD! 

• Concerts – Adults/Money, Leaving Care help out 

• Mountain Biking – Age/The Bikes/Travel 

• Ice Skating (Roller) 

• Theatre 

• Theme Park 

• Art 

• Cinema 

• Bowling 
 
Want to! 
 

• Would like Drama? 

• Like to Dance? 

• Gym? 

• Horse Riding 

• Water?  Boats – various 

• Outdoor Pursuits? 

• Paint Bowling 

• Go Karting 

• Singing Karaoke 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
  

Page 64Page 70



5 
d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\2\1\ai00006128\$uvxjj2l5.docx 

Flip Chart 4 
 
More should be done to encourage individual positive activities rather than group 
participation. 
 
Recent residential helped. 
 
More to be done to entice people into positive activities. 
 
Do: 
 

• Watch telly. 

• Nights out (weekend) 

• Watch Morecambe Football Club 
 
Want to do: 
 

• Football 
 
Barrier: 
 

• Time/Work 
 
When young I did: 
 

• All sports teams at school 

• Taken to activity days 

• Activities sometimes done as a Unit 
 
Residential home: 
 

• Sometimes routine is fixed which doesn't fit into activity timetable. 

• CRB required for other parents giving lifts/taking to activities. 

• Well supported to get into activities. 

• Sometimes not enough interest from YP to get involved in activities. 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 

Page 65Page 71



Page 66Page 72



���������	�


���	������	��
���
�������	���


���������	
������	������	��	

�������
���	���	�������	����

��������	�


M
in

u
te

 Ite
m

 3
2

P
a
g
e
 6

7
P

age 73



��������	��
�

���������	�
����	����������������������	���	��

�����	������������������������ ����������

���
��������

���������������������������	���������
�������

������������������	����������	������	 ���

!���� ���

P
a
g
e
 6

8
P

age 74



����������

• "�����������	������#��������$���% &��'���

• (���	��������	������	��������	���	���������	���

����	����)��	�������	����������	��	���	���*�+���

�$���� ,�� ���-���	�����)��	.

• � ��
����	������
���������������������	����

���-�������	�����)��	�	��	�	���������������

�������.�

• "����������	���
���������	����	 �,

P
a
g
e
 6

9
P

age 75



/����	�	������	 �������������������	�-������

!��
����/��������

������

– ������������	 
������

������������������	 ��

���������������

– ������������������������

� ���������	
����������
• ���������	
���
�
�
�����
��

��������
������������������������

���������

�����������

������	
��������

– ������������������

�������������������

 ���� ��������������

�����!"��

• ���������
�������

������
����
– �
�������������

– �
������ ��
�����

P
a
g
e
 7

0
P

age 76



��
�����������������

���������	
�� ���������	 
���

• #������$� ������������

• #����������%�� �������

• &��'�(������� ��)��!��������%�

��������������)���

��� ���	
�� �������	�
�������

�����������

• �*�"��������

• +�%��)������������%���������

��������������������)���

• �����������%����������

• +����)����������$� ��

,�����	 -���������������(���

���������������.���������

• ������%�������������

• +�%��)������/�����%���������

��������� �����������	�
�������������

���	������
���
�������
�
���������	
�

��� ���	
��	 &���(� ��%��)�

��������������������,����

P
a
g
e
 7

1
P

age 77



Quotes

01������)�����%���

�)����������������

��������������� �� ���

����2����������� ��	����	

0/�)����������������0/�)����������������

)��%�������%�������)�����

%����'�)����3�)2
�������� �	
��	

01����

����������

�������%��

�'������ ��(���

�������2�
������� �����	����

�������������	
�����

����� ���	
�

P
a
g
e
 7

2
P

age 78



���������	

�����	��	�����

�	��������	�
• ����%�������$� �����������

�����(����������������������

�������������������������

�������

• ������!,������������

• ���.���������������������

����������(� ���������������

����������(��������������

�����������������%����������

��%����������)�����

��� �%� ������������(����

������ ���� ��(�������������

����������)������������

������

• #���������%���������������

�������������������������

���������� �������4���� ����

 ���������������(����������

��)����������������

P
a
g
e
 7

3
P

age 79



�

�����

• ���������	�
����	�������

�������	�
��������������

�	���������� �����

���������	���	�

�	��������������
	������

�����������������

– /�����!�(�������

– +��������!��((���

• �������	�
������
���


�����������������������

�
���

– #��������� �))��

– #�)��!����������(��

P
a
g
e
 7

4
P

age 80



�����������������������

• ���������	
���

• ����������������	�����

• ����������������	��������������

• ����	�������������	�������

������������������������������������������������������������
!
������
��"�#����
��#�������$������"�

%�����
��&&

• ��������������������	�������

• ������������	��������	��������

• ���������

Friends 

4 U

P
a
g
e
 7

5
P

age 81



��������������
#���%�������������(����

��������5�

• *�%��������������6�*�%������

&��)�

• 7����������� �)��������

���
�����	���
������
��	���
�
����	��

• ��� �� �����������

)�� ������������������� ��

��� ������������������

�������%���� �)����8

• ��������������� �)���������

• "�����������������

• 9�����������	 ��������

��������

• :�����������������%������

• 3�������������%�����������

����������)����

�������)������������

• �������(�������������

������������������%���

������� ���������

P
a
g
e
 7

6
P

age 82



���������

����������
����	
����

���������	
��	������	� �	����������

�����	�������	������������	�������

�������� �

���

�	�����	������	��������	

����������

������������

�������������

�������� �

	��

������� �

���

P
a
g
e
 7

7
P

age 83



������

•  ���	���!"�

�
	���������

�	�����������

#"��	���

• �������	�
�������
����������

• $��������������	������
������

����������������
�������

	�����
���
�

• �	�������������������
	�������

������	��������������

���������� �����������	�
������

	����%���	��������	
�����&

• ��������
�'�
�

P
a
g
e
 7

8
P

age 84



��������
• 1����������������������������

������������������%�

���������;

• ��������%���(� ���������������

�������������)���������������

�������� �� ������������������

• #��������� ���� �;��1����

���������������������������

���������������� ���������;

• <����%��������������������

�����%���(� ���������

��������
������������������������

���������	 �������������

�����������������������;

• 7��������������������(� �����

�%%� ���;

��������

• <��� ��������������������

�����������������������;

P
a
g
e
 7

9
P

age 85



P
a
g
e
 8

0
P

age 86



 
 

1 
 

Lancashire County Council 
 
Corporate Parenting Board 
 
Minutes of the Meeting held on Thursday, 26th July, 2012 at 2.00 pm in 
Plungington Youth & Community Centre, Brook St, Preston, PR1 7NB 
 
 
Present: Members  
 County Councillor Tony 

Winder 
- Lancashire County Council 

 County Councillor 
Margaret Brindle 

- Lancashire County Council 

 County Councillor Mrs 
Pat Case 

- Lancashire County Council 

 County Councillor 
Andrea Kay 

- Lancashire County Council 

 County Councillor 
Carolyn Evans 

- Lancashire County Council 

 County Councillor 
Jennifer Mein 

- Lancashire County Council 

 County Councillor 
Vivien Taylor 

- Lancashire County Council 

 Jane Simpson - representing Foster Carers 
 Louise Taylor - Director for Specialist Services, Directorate 

for Children and Young People, Lancashire 
County Council 

 Kieran - representing Children in Care Council 
 Kris - representing Children in Care Council 
 Liam - representing Children in Care Council 
 Co-opted members  
 Paul Armitage - or Paul Hegarty, representing Children's 

Social Care, Lancashire County Council 
 Katherine Ashworth - representing Young People's Service, 

Lancashire County Council 
 Ismail Karolia - Ambassador for Young People 
 Cath Randall - representing Primary Care Trust/Lancashire 

County Council 
 Nicola Bamford - Designated GP, representing Health 
 Other Attendees  
 Sue Parr - representing The Virtual School, Lancashire 

County Council 
 Mark Elliott - Governance and Project Support Team, 

Lancashire County Council 
 Sam Gorton - Governance Team, Lancashire County 

Council 
 Laura Goodfellow - Lancashire Children's Rights Service 
 Louise Mackender de 

Cari 
- Strategic Integrated Service Development 
Team, Lancashire County Council 

Page 87



 
2 

 

 Linda Harmer Jones - Independent Reviewing Officers 
 Paul Maher - Lancashire Children's Rights Service 
 Chris Berry - Virtual Schools. Lancashire County Council 
 Mark Robson - Virtual Schools, Lancashire County Council 
 
  
 
39. Introductions and Apologies 

 
Introductions were made round the room and it was noted that Kris would Chair 
this meeting, with support from County Councillor Winder. 
 
Apologies were noted from Amy, Liam, Marcellus and Tasha 
 
40. Healthy Eating  

 
Liam led the Board through a presentation on healthy eating. 
 
The Board undertook some group exercises regarding the balance of the various 
food groups and the challenge of providing food for ten people on a budget of 
£30 per day. 
 
The Board in groups also recorded its ideas for advocating healthy eating and 
these ideas have been attached to these notes. 
 
41. Communicating with Young People 

 
Kieron led the Board through a brief session on how best to communicate with 
young people. 
 
The Board, in groups, discussed the various options and these have been 
recorded on the sheets attached to this. 
 
42. 10 minute break 

 
43. Involvement in Formal Meetings 

 
Kris led the Board in a discussion regarding the involvement of children and 
young people in formal meetings such as: reviews and Corporate Parenting 
Board and the use of the 'Golden Rules'. 
 
The Board noted down its suggestions which are attached to these notes.  The 
Board also welcomed the fact the Burnley Children's Trust Board are looking at 
the Golden Rules to see if they may be used as a way of communicating with 
Children and Young People. 
 
44. What Next?   

 

Page 88



 
3 

 

Kris led the Board in considering what were hot topics for young people at the 
moment. 
 
The Board felt the topics included interacting with Social Workers, County 
Councillors to visit Children in Care Council (CiCC) meetings, difficulties in 
reaching all Children in Care, transport to CiCC meetings, membership, structure 
and size of the CiCC. 
 
45. AOB  

 
There were no items of any other business identified. 
 
46. Date and Time of Next Meeting 

 
The Board noted that its next meeting was to be held on 6 September in the Oak 
Room, Woodlands Conference Centre, Chorley at 6pm (refreshments available 
from 5.30pm).and that Dr Maggie Atkinson, Children's Commissioner for England 
would be in attendance. 
 

Page 89



Page 90



Breakfast Porridge with skimmed milk Warm drink 

 Banana/apple  

Lunch Sandwiches – wholemeal bread  

 Cheese and tomato Fruit, water 

Tea Spaghetti Bolognese with 
vegetables in it 

Orange juice 

 

1. Questionnaire. 

2. More involvement in menu and shopping lists. 

3. More involvement in helping with cooking leading to taking the lead with 

cooking meal. 

 

Minute Item 40

Page 1Page 91



Page 2Page 92



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

£30  Breakfast 

 

£2.80  24 Weetabix biscuits 

£2.00  2 litres milk 

£2.50  Jacket potato     Bananas 

£1.00  Margarine/low fat spread   Juice 

£3.00  Beans      Water 

£4.00  Cheese 

 

  Spaghetti Bolognese 

 

£3.00  Pasta 

£6.00  Minced beef 

£0.20  Tomatoes – 4 tins   Grow your own veg, herbs, spices 

       Source locally fresh produce 

 

Meat/Fish 
Veg/Fruit 

Carbs 

Fats 

Sugars 

Protein 

5 a day 

Cakes 

Chocolate 
Potato 

Pasta 

Bread 

Page 3Page 93



Page 4Page 94



£30 for 10 people per day 

 

Breakfast – cereal/milk/toast/jam = £5.00 

 

Lunch – home made soup (£2.00)/sandwich = £5.00 

 

Dinner 

 

 

 

 

1. Children to help with shopping (basic cooking: learn to cook, learn to bake). 

2. Bowls of fruit available. 

3. Bulk cooking/freezing. 

4. Veg garden. 

Page 5Page 95



Page 6Page 96



10 People  £30 Budget 

Breakfast   

Porridge  £1.50 

Milk   £0.99 

Fruit   £1.00 

Honey   £1.00 

   £4.49 

Lunch   

Baked Potato £3.00 

Tuna   £5.00 

Cheese  £2.00 

Salad   £3.00 

Yoghurt  £2.50 

   £15.50 

Evening Meal 

Spaghetti Bol  £7.00 

Pasta   £1.50 

Ice Cream  £1.50 

   £10.00 

 

 

∗ Themed Days 

∗ Grow your own 

Teach CYP how to Cook 'n' Shop 

Dairy 

Cheese 

Milk 

Yoghurt 
Fats 

Sugar  

Chocolate 

Carbs 

Bread 

Cakes 

Pasta 

Rice 

Cereal 

 

Protein 

Fish  

Chicken 

Meat 

Fruit 

Veg 

P
a
g
e
 7

P
age 97



P
a
g
e
 8

P
age 98



Agenda for Future Role 

 

 

 

 

    Communication 

 

    Participation 

 

Community 

 

Representative in CiCC 

Minute Item 41

Page 9Page 99



Page 10Page 100



Communication 

 

• Language. 

• Two way. 

 

Page 11Page 101



Page 12Page 102



• Returning calls quicker 

• Less jargon – stop using acronyms 

• More meetings that are planned and run by young people 

P
a
g
e
 1

3
P

age 103



P
a
g
e
 1

4
P

age 104



Ways to Involve Young People 

 

Reviews 

 

• Ensure that there is an advocate (carer or school). 

• Understand the necessity and purpose of reviews. 

• Ensure communication with IRO. 

 

CPB 

 

• CinCC = key. 

• Ensure that our children have the skills to present. 

• CinCC must be properly representative. 

 

 

• Children's website (YPS). 

• Text. 

• Social networking. 

• Notice boards, letter. 

• 1-1, face to face. 

• Groups discussions. 

• Helplines. 

• Listen. 

 

 

Golden Rules 

 

Minute Item 43

Page 15Page 105



Page 16Page 106



 

Ways to involve young people Barriers 

• Young mentors. • Travel 

• Peer support. • Access. 

• Corporate Parenting Board. • Resource/cost. 

• Higher percentage of young people.  

• Day in the life of a Social Worker.  

• Let children and young people put 
their views first. 

• Not finding appropriate person who 
can solve issue. 

• Choice of Social Workers. • Rushed. 

 • Booklets for all ages (present 
younger children) (pre-meeting) 

• Improved access to Social Worker 
with set SLA (Service Level 
Agreement).  Phone calls must be 
returned within 24 hours or text 
message.  If Social Worker on 
holiday, leave, etc there should be 
a Relief Social Worker. 

 

• Improve logistics/timings. • Non-availability – school, college 
commitments. 

• Improvement in agenda setting.  

• Children in foster care to be 
included. 

• Isolation of children in foster care 
as they are not bonding with 
children in residential. 

 

Page 17Page 107



Page 18Page 108



WAYS TO INVOLVE YOUNG PEOPLE BARRIERS 

Reviews 
Younger children - pictures – video diaries 

Advanced notice 
Young people can chair 

Education – designated teachers not attending 
Teacher led education plan 

CPB  

- Need more slack in meetings to ensure they can 
interrupt and ask for more details / explanations 
- More interactive activities 

- Apprentice – ideas for improvement 
- Speed dating 
Good to keep including YP 

Social session 

- Terminology 

- Complicated 
- PowerPoint 
- Policies 

- Tight meetings / no chance to interrupt  

 

 

P
a
g
e
 1

9
P

age 109



P
a
g
e
 2

0
P

age 110



How are we going to change? 

 

• Limit presenters to 5 mins (as in County Council). 

• CiCC to be helped have better understanding as their role as representatives of 

all CLAs (skills training needed). 

• Open forum. 

 

Minute Item 44

Page 21Page 111



Page 22Page 112



HOW ARE WE GOING TO CHANGE? 

 

• Quality amount of time for each item 

• More planning for YP before meetings 

• Terminology – better use of language 

 

Hot Topics 

• CICC – membership numbers / structure / is it all appropriate? 

• Role of social workers  

 

 

P
a
g
e
 2

3
P

age 113



P
a
g
e
 2

4
P

age 114



How are we going to change? 

 

• More young people. 

• More time allocated for sharing and discussion of topics. 

• Joint Chairperson starting with next meeting. 

• More involvement in agenda setting. 

• Wider representation across County and private sector. 

 

 

**Agenda** 

Suggestions for future meetings. 

Discuss interacting with Social Workers. 

Elected Members visit CiCC (Linx). 

Ask Tony Button on websites. 

Page 25Page 115



Page 26Page 116



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\6\5\0\ai00007056\$fnrt21go.docx 

Corporate Parenting Board – 6 September 2012 
 

Briefing Note in Relation to the Governments' Adoption Action Plan and 
Lancashire's Response To It 

 

 
Purpose of the report and Summary 
 
This report explains some of the ways the Government wants local authorities to 
manage the care planning and adoption process so that delays for children don't 
happen.  The report also explains what action we are taking in Lancashire to make 
sure we are doing things in the way the Government wants and most importantly of 
all says what we are doing to make sure we do things quickly enough for children 
who need to be adopted.  The purpose of the report is to provide the Board with 
information and the chance to ask questions. 
 
The Government wants the local authority to place children faster with stable, safe 
and loving families.  It has been decided there needs to be some changes made to 
the law to make this easier.  Some changes to the law start on 1 September 2012.  
The Government have also invented a kind of test called the "Adoption Score 
Cards".  It is a little bit like a school report in some ways but looks at how well or not 
every local authority in the country is working to place children for adoption without 
delay.  It helps us to understand what we are doing well and where we need to 
improve. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
  

Key Information and Questions for Board Members 
 
Sorting things out well but quickly for children who need to be adopted can be 
difficult.  A report called "Right on Time" in April this year says that on average it 
takes two years and seven months before children are adopted after entering care.  
Most adopted children are aged between one and four years of age when they join 
their new family, with the average age at adoption standing at three years and 10 
months. 
 
The numbers of children placed with adoptive families in Lancashire over the 
course of 2008 to 2012 are: 
 
2008 - 2009 = 48 
2009 - 2010 = 59 
2010 –2011 = 71 
2011 –2012 = 61 
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 117



- 2 - 

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\6\5\0\ai00007056\$fnrt21go.docx 

Background 
 
We know there are sometimes risks in adoption and we have to manage these risks.  
Adoption really does work though.  For hundreds of children every year their lives 
are improved by being adopted.  It is important though to make sure that we place 
children with adopters who are able to meet their needs, make them happy and help 
them to achieve. 
 
Childhood is short and really precious.  Most children being placed for adoption have 
already had a lot of difficult things happen in their life.  Social workers know how 
important it is for children to have settled placements that last at the earliest possible 
stage.  We are already doing many of the things which the Government are 
suggesting.  I know the Adoption Service in Lancashire has more to learn and we 
can probably do better.  Children deserve no less.  
 
The new "Adoption Score Card" published for the first time in May this year 
measures three things over a three year period.  These measures (or tests) indicate 
how well each local authority is doing. 
 
1. Average time between a child entering care and moving in with his/her 

adoptive family (in days) 
 
The average in England is 625 days and the average in Lancashire is 676 (target 
not met) 

 
2. Average time between a local authority receiving Court permission to place 

a child and the local authority finding an adoptive family (in days) 
 
The average in England is 171 days and the average in Lancashire is 199 days. 
Our figures are longer than the England averaged over three years, but shorter in 
2011; trend is 'improved'. 

 
3. Children who wait less than 21 months between entering care and moving 

in with their adoptive family (measured as a %) 
 
The average in England is 58% and the average in Lancashire is 47% 

 
The main reason for delay is the time it can take the Court to decide whether or not a 
child can be adopted.  It can take more than a year sometimes.  It has been 
suggested that Courts should finish the process in six months.  This should help 
local authorities to place children for adoption more quickly.  
 
  

Page 118



- 3 - 

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\6\5\0\ai00007056\$fnrt21go.docx 

Work we are doing in Lancashire to place children with adopters within 21 
months of entering care.  
 

• Improving the way we check and test out what we are doing in the Adoption 
Service and Children's Social Care and know what we are doing well and where 
we need to improve. 

• Making sure the Adoption Service, Social Work Teams in the Districts and 
Independent Reviewing Officers work well together to improve and speed up the 
adoption/care planning process.  A plan has been agreed and a group meets 
regularly to make sure we are doing everything that we have said we will do. 

• Improving the way the Adoption Panel works to make sure it does not slow things 
down.  We have a new way for making what is called "The Agency Decision" 
which means deciding whether a child should be placed for adoption. 

• Using ways to find and prepare adopters which makes sure we get the right kind 
of people for our children who need to be adopted. 

• Finding the right adopter for the right child or children as early as possible.  We 
have a traffic light system for every child who needs to be placed with adopters 
which helps us to make sure we are doing everything we can to find a family as 
quickly as we possibly can. 

• Meeting with Judges to work out how to shorten the time it takes for the Court to 
make a decision.  The Lancashire Safeguarding Children Board is helping with 
this. 

• Use lots of different ways to find enough adopters and make sure that we train 
them well to care for the children we place with them. 

• Work closely with other local authorities and learn from their good ideas. 

• We are starting a new way of approving some people as adopters so that 
children do not have to change placements as often.  To start with we hope to get 
15 carers who we can have as both Foster and Adoptive Parents.  
 

Conclusion 
 
Some of the action that was necessary for us to take has already been completed.  A 
report will be presented to the Directors in Children and Young People's Directorate 
on the 26 September explaining what work we have been doing to improve. 
 
Decisions required 
 
The report is for information though questions may be asked of the report author.  
 
 
 
Report Author: 
 
Anne-Marie Ranson 
Adoption Service Manager 
County Hall Offices room B20 
Telephone number 01772 534965 
anne-marie.ranson@lancashire.gov.uk  
 
Date of report production: 7th August 2012 

Page 119



Page 120



1 

 

Performance Report on Corporate Parenting Board Priorities  

Leaving Care: CYP are fully prepared for adulthood and make a good start to adult life 

Leaving Care 
Priority 1 Care Leavers in EET 

Current Performance 
(at 30th June 2012) 

2011/12 
Performance  

Performance 
Direction 

The proportion of care leavers in employment, 
education & training at age 19 

45.5% 
(10 care leavers) 

51.6% � 
 

A high percentage is good. The percentage of care leavers in employment, education and training has been decreasing from 2010/11 when the 

target was exceeded. This may be a reflection of the current economic situation 

 

Leaving Care  
Priority 2 Care Leavers in Suitable 
Accommodation  

Current Performance 
(at 30th June 2012) 

2011/12 
Performance  

Performance 
Direction 

The proportion of care leavers at age 19 who are 
living in suitable accommodation 

59.1% 
(13 care leavers) 

83.3% � 

 

A high percentage is good. There are a variety of reasons why care leavers may not be in 'suitable accommodation',  including being in prison, 

having returned home, living chaotic lives due to drug use or mental health issues, or refusing to co-operate with social care. Lancashire has 

recently commissioned leaving care accommodation with other North West authorities and is continuing to work with district council housing 

support.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A
genda Item

 10

P
age 121



2 

 

 

Employment, Education and Training: CYP Perform well in school and beyond and are well prepared for the world of work  

 

Employment, Education and Training 

Priority 1 English at Key Stage 2 

Current Performance 
(2010/11 academic 

year) 

2009/10 
Performance  

Performance 
Direction 

The proportion of CLA who had been in care for at 
least a year who achieved level 4 in English at Key 
Stage 2  

44% 53% � 

 

A high percentage is good. The latest published figures available are for 2010/11. Performance is line with the 2007/8 and 2008/9 academic 

years which implies that performance in 2009/10 was very good and above the norm.  

 

Employment, Education and Training 

Priority 2 Maths at Key Stage 2 

Current Performance 
(2010/11 academic 

year) 

2009/10 
Performance  

Performance 
Direction 

The proportion of CLA who had been in care for at 
least a year who achieved level 4 in Maths at Key 
Stage 2  

40% 47% � 

 

A high percentage is good. Lancashire's performance for the academic year 2010/11 was 40% (national published figure), which represents a 
drop on previous years' performance of 47% and performance of 44% for 2009/10 and 2008/9 respectively. 
 

Employment, Education and Training 

Priority 3 Five+ GCSEs 

Current Performance 
(2010/11 academic 

year) 

2009/10 
Performance  

Performance 
Direction 

The proportion of CLA who have been in care for at 
least 1 year achieving 5 GCSEs at A* to C at Key 
Stage 4 including Maths and English   

12.2% 
(10 CLA) 

 

18.6% 
(17 CLA) 

 
� 

 
A high percentage is good. The latest published figures available are for 2010/11. Of the 94 young people in the cohort, 12 had left care before 
31st March 2011. Of the 82 remaining, 62 have attained at least 1 GCSE at grades A-G and a further 16 young people have attained 
alternative qualifications either Entry Level or P Scales. 23 children have achieved 5+ GCSEs at grades A*-C (28.0%) and 10 of these have 
achieved 5+ GCSEs including English and Maths at grades A*-C (12.2%). 

P
age 122



3 

 

 
 
Placement Stability: CYP enjoy stable good quality placements  
 

Placement Stability  

Priority 1Three or more placements  
Current Performance 
(as at 31

st
 July 2012) 

2011/12 
Performance  

Performance 
Direction 

The percentage of children looked after with 3 or 
more placements during the past 12 month 
period 

8.3% 
(10 CLA) 

9.5% ☺ 

 
A low percentage is good. Lancashire's performance in this indicator for 2011/12 was 9.5% which was in line with the target and an 
improvement on the previous year's performance. This trend of improved performance continued for 6 consecutive months, before a slight rise 
of 0.2% in July 2012. 
 

Placement Stability  

Priority 2 Length of placement 

Current Performance 
(as at 31

st
 July 2012) 

2011/12 
Performance  

Performance 
Direction 

 
The percentage of CLA aged under 16 who had 
been looked after continuously for at least 2.5 
years who were living in the same placement for 
at least 2 years, or are placed for adoption and 
their adoptive placement with their previous 
placement has lasted for at least 2 years. 

71.9% 
(255 CLA) 

71.9% ☺ 

 

A high percentage is good. Performance has been improving since 2009/10 when 63.3% CLA were in placements for at least 2 years 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 123



4 

 

Health and Safeguarding: CYP are healthy and safe 
 

Health and Safeguarding 

Priority 1 Dental checks  
Current Performance 
(as at 31

st
 July 2012) 

2011/12 
Performance  

Performance 
Direction 

The average proportion of CLA who have been 
looked after for at least 12 months who have had 
a  dental check over the last 12 months 

75.3% 
(739 CLA) 

72.8% ☺ 

 
 
A high percentage is good. Performance in 2012 has fluctuated between 72% and 74%, but at the end of July reached 75.3%. 
 

Health and Safeguarding 

Priority 2 Health checks 

Current Performance 
(as at 31

st
 July 2012) 

2011/12 
Performance  

Performance 
Direction 

 
The average proportion of CLA who have been 
looked after for at least 12 months who have had 
a health assessment over the last 12 months 

88.6% 
(869 CLA) 

87.8% ☺ 

 
A high percentage is good. Performance in 2011/12 has fluctuated between 86% and 89%, and at the end of July 88.6% of CLA looked after for 
12 months or more had an up to date health assessment. 
 

Health and Safeguarding 

Priority 3 Timeliness of reviews 
Current Performance 
(as at end 2011/12) 

2010/11 
Performance  

Performance 
Direction 

 
The percentage of CLA cases which should have 
been reviewed during the year that were 
reviewed on time during the year 
 

96.2% 
(1195 CLA) 

97.8% 
(1220 CLA) � 

 
A high percentage is good. Between 2006/07 and 2010/11, Lancashire's performance has improved 18.2% in 4 years, which is exceptional 
given that in 3 years, national performance has only increased 5.2% (national performance for 2010/11 is not available). Lancashire's position 
against national has moved from 5.7% below national average to 5.1% above national average, which again represents this significant 
progress. In 2010/11 performance was 97.8% which represents excellent performance, however this has dropped slightly in 2011/12 to 96.2%  
 

 

P
age 124



Lancashire Corporate Parenting Board – Children Looked After Information 

Source: Lancashire Monthly Performance Report July 2012  

 

How many children are looked after by Lancashire?  

• There were 1380 children looked after (CLA) in Lancashire on 31
st

 July 2012  

• There has been slight but 

steady rise in CLA numbers 

since 2009. By 2012, this 

had reached 1325 which 

was a 2.2% rise on the 

previous year and highest 

level for 6 years. 

 

• Lancashire's rate of CLA per 

10,000 population remains 

below the national average, 

which in real terms means that Lancashire's CLA population should be 1450 according to the 

national average, and it remains 70 CLA below this level. Lancashire's rate is also well below 

the average rates of both the North West authorities group and that of similar local 

authority areas 

 

 

Where do Lancashire's Children Looked After live? 

• Most of Lancashire's CLA (972) live with foster carers 

• Most of these (577) live with our 'in house' foster carers  

BURNLEY

12%
CHORLEY/SOUTH 

RIBBLE

13%

FYLDE/WYRE

6%

HYNDBURN/RIBBLE 

VALLEY

14%
LANCASTER

8%

PENDLE

15%

PRESTON

15%

ROSSENDALE

7%

WEST 

LANCASHIRE

10%

Lancashire's CLA by district

District Number of CLA 

BURNLEY 166 

CHORLEY/SOUTH RIBBLE 174 

FYLDE/WYRE 91 

HYNDBURN/RIBBLE VALLEY 190 

LANCASTER 115 

PENDLE 210 

PRESTON 210 

ROSSENDALE 91 

WEST LANCASHIRE 133 

TOTAL 1380 

Page 125



Lancashire Corporate Parenting Board – Children Looked After Information 

Source: Lancashire Monthly Performance Report July 2012  

 

 

Age and Gender of Lancashire's Children Looked After  

• 55% of Lancashire's Children Looked After are male and 45% are female. This is the 

same for the North West  

 

 

• The largest age group for CLA in Lancashire is 10 to under 16. This is the same for the 

North West 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

Lancashire's CLA  External 

placements 

Lancashire's CLA  In house 

placements 

92 96 41
107 69 109 114 57 74

74 78 50
83 46 101 96 34 59

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

B
U

R
N

LE
Y

C
H

O
R

LE
Y

/S
O

U
T

H
 

R
IB

B
LE

F
Y

LD
E

/W
Y

R
E

H
Y

N
D

B
U

R
N

/R
IB

B
LE

 

V
A

LL
E

Y

LA
N

C
A

S
T

E
R

P
E

N
D

LE

P
R

E
S
T

O
N

R
O

S
S
E

N
D

A
LE

W
E

S
T

 L
A

N
C

A
S
H

IR
E

Gender

Female

Male

Page 126



Lancashire Corporate Parenting Board – Children Looked After Information 

Source: Lancashire Monthly Performance Report July 2012  

 

 

Diversity  

• The largest ethnic group of CLA across Lancashire is White British (1262 or 91.4%) 

followed by Mixed heritage (61 or 4.4%) 

• This is similar to Lancashire's overall White British population which is approximately 

90.9% 

 

13 10 3 17 8 10 17 3 8

31 44
13

39 26 59 43
12

32

38
48

16
33 19

45 49

13

28

56
56

39
62 42 64 60

51
36

28 16
20 39 20 32 41 12 29

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

B
U

R
N

LE
Y

C
H

O
R

LE
Y

/S
O

U
T

H
 

R
IB

B
LE

F
Y

LD
E

/W
Y

R
E

H
Y

N
D

B
U

R
N

/R
IB

B
LE

 

V
A

LL
E

Y

LA
N

C
A

S
T

E
R

P
E

N
D

LE

P
R

E
S
T

O
N

R
O

S
S
E

N
D

A
LE

W
E

S
T

 L
A

N
C

A
S
H

IR
E

Age Bands

16 to under 18

10 to under 16

5 to under 10

1 to under 5

Under 1

0

50

100

150

200

250

B
U

R
N

LE
Y

C
H

O
R

LE
Y

/S
O

U
T

H
 …

F
Y

LD
E

/W
Y

R
E

H
Y

N
D

B
U

R
N

/R
IB

B
LE

 …

LA
N

C
A

S
T

E
R

P
E

N
D

LE

P
R

E
S
T

O
N

R
O

S
S
E

N
D

A
LE

W
E

S
T

 L
A

N
C

A
S
H

IR
E

Ethnicity

Black or Black British

Chinese or other ethnic

Asian or Asian British

Mixed

White

Page 127



Page 128



G
ra

n
t 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 A
p

p
li

c
a
ti

o
n

s

N
u

m
b

e
r

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
/ 

N
o

t 

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d

N
a

m
e

 a
n

d
 

A
d

d
re

s
s

 o
f 

G
ro

u
p

A
p

p
li

c
a

ti
o

n
 D

e
ta

il
s

A
m

o
u

n
t 

R
e

q
u

e
s

te
d

C
o

n
ta

c
t 

P
e

rs
o

n
D

a
te

 A
p

p
li

c
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

c
e

iv
e

d

D
a

te
 C

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 

b
y
 Y

o
u

n
g

 

P
e

o
p

le

D
a

te
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 

b
y
 D

ir
e

c
to

rs

D
a

te
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 

b
y
 C

h
a

ir
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

L
in

k
 t

o
 

R
e

p
o

rt

D
a

te
 s

e
n

t 
to

 

J
u

li
e

D
a

te
 P

a
id

A
m

o
u

n
t 

P
a

id
J

o
u

rn
a

l 
T

ra
n

s
fe

r 

D
e

ta
il

s

1
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
C

L
IC

S
, 

C
o

u
n

ty
 

H
a
ll,

 P
re

s
to

n

R
e

fr
e

s
h

m
e

n
ts

 a
t 

tw
o

 c
o

u
n

ty
 

C
e

le
b

ra
ti
o

n
 E

v
e

n
ts

 2
0

1
0

 f
o

r 

C
h

ild
re

n
 L

o
o

k
e

d
 A

ft
e

r 
a

n
d

 C
a

re
 

L
e

a
v
e

rs

£
3

,1
5

2
.3

2

S
u

z
y
 C

u
m

m
in

g
s
, 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 

O
ff

ic
e

r,
 B

4
 

C
o

u
n

ty
 H

a
ll,

 

0
1

-A
p

r-
2

0
1

0
1

9
-A

p
r-

2
0

1
0

1
9

-A
p

r-
2

0
1

0

A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
\A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n

1
\a

p
p

 1
.p

d
f

1
8

/0
6

/1
0

2
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d

C
re

s
tm

o
o

r

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
U

n
it
, 

E
a

s
d

e
n

 C
lo

u
g

h
, 

M
o

rs
e

 S
tr

e
e

t,
 

B
u

rn
le

y
, 

B
B

1
0

 4
P

B

S
u

m
m

e
r 

fu
n

 d
a

y
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 

in
c
lu

d
e

 s
ta

lls
 t

h
a

t 
g

iv
e

 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 o

u
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

o
n

 h
e

a
lt
h

 m
a

tt
e

rs
, 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
, 

h
e

a
lt
h

y
 e

a
ti
n

g
, 

d
ru

g
s
 e

tc
 t

o
 

a
llo

w
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 t

o
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 

th
is

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 b

u
t 

a
ls

o
 h

a
v
e

 a
 

g
o

o
d

 t
im

e
, 

h
a

v
e

 a
 D

J
 t

o
 p

la
y
 

m
u

s
ic

£
5

0
0

.0
0

G
w

e
n

 M
o

n
k
, 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r,

C
re

s
tm

o
o

r 
C

R
U

0
6

-M
a

y
-2

0
1

0
L

o
u

is
e

 T
a

y
lo

r 

1
9

/0
5

/2
0

1
0

C
C

 W
in

d
e

r 

1
9

/0
5

/2
0

1
0

A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
\A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n

2
\a

p
p

 2
.p

d
f

1
8

/0
6

/1
0

3
0

/0
6

/1
0

£
5

0
0

.0
0

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

N
o

: 

9
0

3
0

6
3

9

S
o

c
ia

l
P

e
d

a
g

o
g

y

3
D

e
fe

rr
e

d

S
o

c
ia

l
P

e
d

a
g

o
g

y

T
a

s
k
 F

o
rc

e
, 

C
re

s
tm

o
o

re

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
U

n
it
, 

E
a

s
d

e
n

 C
lo

u
g

h
, 

M
o

rs
e

 S
tr

e
e

t,
 

B
u

rn
le

y
, 

B
B

1
0

 4
P

B

S
e

e
in

g
 T

h
e

 H
id

d
e

n
 –

 a
 

p
h

o
to

g
ra

p
h

y
 p

ro
je

c
t,

 t
h

a
t 

c
u

lm
in

a
te

s
 i
n

 p
u

b
lis

h
in

g
 a

 b
o

o
k

£
2

,0
7

5
.0

0

A
le

x
a

n
d

e
r 

B
o

rc
h

e
rt

, 
S

o
c
ia

l 

P
e

d
a

g
o

g
u

e
/

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

n
t

1
3

/0
5

/1
0

R
e

p
ly

 R
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 

L
o

u
is

e
 T

a
y
lo

r 

1
6

/0
7

/2
0

1
0

A
u

th
o

r 
in

fo
rm

e
d

 

d
e

fe
rr

e
d

1
1

/0
8

/2
0

1
0

A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
\A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 3

4
N

o
t 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d

H
a

v
e

rh
o

lt
 

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 H
o

m
e

, 

2
4

A
 H

a
v
e

rh
o

lt
 

C
lo

s
e

, 
C

o
ln

e
, 

B
B

8
 

9
S

N

T
o

 e
n

a
b

le
 C

L
A

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 S
p

a
n

is
h

 

fi
e

s
ta

 t
y
p

e
 m

e
a

l,
 v

is
it
in

g
 t

h
e

 

R
o

m
a

n
 A

m
p

h
it
h

e
a

tr
e

 n
e

a
r 

w
h

e
re

 w
e

 a
re

 s
ta

y
in

g
, 

a
 d

a
y
 o

u
t 

a
t 

a
 W

a
te

r 
P

a
rk

 a
n

d
 a

 d
a

y
 o

u
t 

a
t 

a
 T

h
e

m
e

 P
a

rk
 a

n
d

 f
in

a
lly

 

ri
d

e
s
 o

n
 a

 B
a

n
a

n
a

 B
o

a
t 

o
r 

s
o

m
e

th
in

g
 s

im
ila

r 
w

h
ils

t 
o

n
 

h
o

lid
a

y
 i
n

 S
p

a
in

£
2

,0
0

0
.0

0

A
la

n
 H

o
rn

b
y
, 

R
e

g
is

te
re

d

M
a

n
a

g
e

r,

H
a

v
e

rh
o

lt
 C

C
H

0
7

-J
u

l-
2

0
1

0

G
ra

n
t 

N
o

t 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 

L
o

u
is

e
 T

a
y
lo

r 

1
6

/0
7

/2
0

1
0

N
o

t 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 -
 

A
u

th
o

r 
in

fo
rm

e
d

 

2
0

/0
7

/2
0

1
0

A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
\A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 4

\1
0

 

0
7

 0
7

 

A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 

fo
rm

h
o

lid
a

y
.d

o
c
x

C
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 Y
o

u
n

g
 

P
e

o
p

le
's

 
P

ri
n
ti
n

g
 "

E
n

ti
tl
e

m
e

n
ts

 L
e

a
fl
e

ts
" 

P
e

te
r 

F
ra

n
c
is

, 

P
f

L
i

T
l

C
C

W
i

d

1
4

/0
9

/2
0

1
0

 -
 

N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 

A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
\A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n

5
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d

p

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

, 
C

o
u

n
ty

 

H
a

ll,
 P

re
s
to

n
, 

P
R

1
 

8
R

J

g

fo
r 

o
u

r 
L

o
o

k
e

d
 A

ft
e

r 
C

h
ild

re
n

 

a
n

d
 C

a
re

 L
e

a
v
e

rs
 

£
3

2
2

.0
0

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

M
a

n
a

g
e

r,
 R

o
o

n
 

B
1

0
, 

C
o

u
n

ty
 H

a
ll

0
6

-A
u

g
-2

0
1

0
L

o
u

is
e

T
a

y
lo

r

1
0

/0
8

/1
0

C
C

W
in

d
e

r

1
1

/0
8

/2
0

1
0

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 t

o
 

P
e

te
r 

F
ra

n
c
is

p
p

5
\E

n
ti
tl
e

m
e

n
ts

 

L
e

a
fl
e

ts
 -

 

G
ra

n
t

6
N

o
t 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d

H
a

v
e

rh
o

lt
 

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 H
o

m
e

, 

2
4

A
 H

a
v
e

rh
o

lt
 

C
lo

s
e

, 
C

o
ln

e
, 

B
B

8
 

T
o

 f
u

n
d

 a
 c

o
n

s
e

rv
a

to
ry

 a
t 

th
e

 

b
a

c
k
 o

f 
th

e
 h

o
u

s
e

£
3

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

M
is

s
 S

a
ra

h
 H

ill
, 

A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r,

H
a

v
e

rh
o

lt
 C

C
H

1
7

-A
u

g
-2

0
1

0

R
e

p
ly

 f
ro

m
 

L
o

u
is

e
 T

a
y
lo

r 

3
1

/0
8

/2
0

1
0

A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
\A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n

6
\H

a
v
e

rh
o

lt
.p

d

f

7
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d

F
o

s
te

ri
n

g

R
e

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a

m

T
o

 s
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

t 
th

e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
's

 r
e

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
in

 

o
rd

e
r 

to
 m

e
e

t 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 n

e
w

 

fo
s
te

r 
c
a

re
r 

ta
rg

e
ts

.

£
1

3
,0

0
0

.0
0

G
ill

 G
re

e
n

, 

F
o

s
te

ri
n

g

R
e

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 

T
e

a
m

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

0
6

-O
c
t-

2
0

1
0

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 f

ro
m

 

L
o

u
is

e
 T

a
y
lo

r 

1
2

/1
0

/2
0

1
0

C
C

 W
in

d
e

r/
C

C
 

W
ils

o
n

 

2
0

/1
0

/2
0

1
0

2
1

/1
0

/2
0

1
0

N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 

a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
s
e

n
t 

to
 

S
ta

s
ia

 O
s
io

w
y
, 

B
a

rb
a

ra
 B

a
th

 

a
n

d
 G

ill
 G

re
e

n

A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
\A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n

7
\G

ra
n

t

A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
.d

o

c

C
L

A
S

S
, 

2
n

d
 F

lo
o

r,
 

C
i

i
C

t
W

t

E
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
' 
T

ra
in

in
g

 f
o

r 

E
m

o
ti
o

n
a

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 

W
e

llb
e

in
g

 m
o

d
u

le
s
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

o
f 

L
a

n
c
a

s
h

ir
e

's
 C

h
ild

re
n

's
 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 (
e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 a

t 

5
4

0
0

0
)

T
h

e
m

o
d

u
le

s
w

ill
b

e
M

a
rk

W
a

rr
e

n
,

3
0

/1
2

/1
1

F
o

llo
w

S
e

n
t

to
L

o
u

is
e

S
e

n
t

to
C

C

A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
\A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n

8
\G

t
8

In
 P

ro
g

re
s

s
C

iv
ic

C
e

n
tr

e
,

W
e

s
t

P
a

d
d

o
c
k
, 

L
e

y
la

n
d

, 

P
R

2
5

 1
D

H

5
4

,0
0

0
).

T
h

e
m

o
d

u
le

s
w

ill
b

e

a
c
c
e

s
s
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 L

a
n

c
a

s
h

ir
e

's
 

w
e

b
s
it
e

. 
T

h
e

 f
u

ll 
c
o

u
rs

e
 

c
o

n
s
is

ts
 o

f 
n

in
e

 m
o

d
u

le
s
 o

f 

w
h

ic
h

 t
h

re
e

 h
a

v
e

 s
o

 f
a

r 
b

e
e

n
 

fu
n

d
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
n

d
 N

H
S

 N
W

. 
 T

h
e

s
e

 

w
ill

b
e

la
u

n
c
h

e
d

in
th

e
n

e
w

£
3

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

a
a

e
,

C
A

M
H

S
 C

o
-

o
rd

in
a

to
r

1
6

-D
e

c
-2

0
1

0

3
0

/
/

o
o

U
p

 S
e

n
t 

to
 M

a
rk

 

W
a

rr
e

n

S
e

t
to

o
u

s
e

T
a

y
lo

r 

0
7

/0
1

/2
0

1
1

S
e

t
to

C
C

W
in

d
e

r 

0
7

/0
1

/2
0

1
1

8
\G

ra
n

t

F
u

n
d

in
g

A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
.d

o

c
x

Agenda Item 16

Page 129



G
ra

n
t 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 A
p

p
li

c
a
ti

o
n

s

N
u

m
b

e
r

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
/ 

N
o

t 

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d

N
a

m
e

 a
n

d
 

A
d

d
re

s
s

 o
f 

G
ro

u
p

A
p

p
li

c
a

ti
o

n
 D

e
ta

il
s

A
m

o
u

n
t 

R
e

q
u

e
s

te
d

C
o

n
ta

c
t 

P
e

rs
o

n
D

a
te

 A
p

p
li

c
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

c
e

iv
e

d

D
a

te
 C

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 

b
y
 Y

o
u

n
g

 

P
e

o
p

le

D
a

te
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 

b
y
 D

ir
e

c
to

rs

D
a

te
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 

b
y
 C

h
a

ir
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

L
in

k
 t

o
 

R
e

p
o

rt

D
a

te
 s

e
n

t 
to

 

J
u

li
e

D
a

te
 P

a
id

A
m

o
u

n
t 

P
a

id
J

o
u

rn
a

l 
T

ra
n

s
fe

r 

D
e

ta
il

s

9
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d

C
re

s
tm

o
o

r

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
U

n
it
, 

1
 

U
n

it
y
 W

a
y
, 

o
ff

 

H
a

s
lin

g
d

e
n

 O
ld

 

R
o

a
d

, 
R

a
w

te
n

s
ta

ll,
 

B
B

4
 8

R
R

C
re

s
tm

o
o

r 
w

o
u

ld
 l
ik

e
 t

o
 s

ta
rt

 a
n

 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

 w
it
h

 B
u

rn
le

y
 Y

o
u

th
 

T
h

e
a

tr
e

 t
h

a
t 

w
ill

 s
e

e
 t

h
e

 y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 o

f 
C

re
s
tm

o
o

r 
e

x
p

re
s
s
 

th
e

m
s
e

lv
e

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 

m
e

d
ia

. 
A

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

th
e

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
ill

 h
a

v
e

 

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 a

 D
V

D
 t

h
a

t 
s
h

o
w

s
 "

A
 

lif
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 d

a
y
 o

f 
C

re
s
tm

o
o

r"
.

£
6

,4
7

5
.0

0

A
le

x
a

n
d

e
r 

B
o

rc
h

e
rt

, 
S

o
c
ia

l 

P
e

d
a

g
o

g
u

e

1
2

-J
a

n
-2

0
1

1

0
2

/0
3

/2
0

1
1

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 

L
o

u
is

e
 T

a
y
lo

r

0
4

/0
3

/2
0

1
1

 C
C

 

V
a

l 
W

ils
o

n
 

A
p

p
ro

v
a

l

1
0

/0
3

/2
0

1
1

N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 

a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
s
e

n
t 

to
 

A
le

x
a

n
d

e
r 

B
o

rc
h

e
rt

A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
\A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n

9
\a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n

9
.p

d
f

1
0

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d

H
a

n
n

a
h

 P
e

a
k
e

, 

C
Y

P
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

, 

C
o

u
n

ty
 H

a
ll,

 

P
re

s
to

n
,

P
R

1
8

R
J

W
o

rk
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 e
n

a
b

le
 t

h
e

 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
lo

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

£
2

,5
3

0
.0

0
H

a
n

n
a

h
 P

e
a

k
e

2
5

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

1

A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 

R
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 f

ro
m

 

L
o

u
is

e
 T

a
y
lo

r 
 

2
5

/0
3

/2
0

1
1

0
6

/0
4

/2
0

1
1

 C
C

 

W
ils

o
n

0
6

/0
5

/2
0

1
1

A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
E

m
a

il 

S
e

n
t 

to
 H

a
n

n
a

h
 

P
e

a
k
e

A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
\A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n

1
0

\a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n

1
0

.p
d

f
P

re
s
to

n
,

P
R

1
8

R
J

2
5

/0
3

/2
0

1
1

P
e

a
k
e

1
0

.p
d

f

1
1

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d

H
a

n
n

a
h

 P
e

a
k
e

, 

C
Y

P
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

, 

C
o

u
n

ty
 H

a
ll,

 

P
re

s
to

n
, 

P
R

1
 8

R
J

T
o

 d
e

s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 p
ri

n
t 

s
e

v
e

ra
l 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

fr
ie

n
d

ly
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ts

. 

£
2

,4
8

5
.0

0
H

a
n

n
a

h
 P

e
a

k
e

0
5

-A
p

r-
2

0
1

1

0
6

/0
4

/2
0

1
1

A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
L

o
u

is
e

 

T
a

y
lo

r

0
6

/0
4

/2
0

1
1

 C
C

 

W
ils

o
n

0
7

/0
4

/2
0

1
1

A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
E

m
a

il 

s
e

n
t 

to
 H

a
n

n
a

h

A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
\A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n

1
1

\a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n

1
1

.p
d

f

1
2

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d

P
a

u
l 
H

e
g

a
rt

y
, 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

C
L

A
, 

A
re

a
 

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 O

ff
ic

e
, 

W
h

it
e

 C
ro

s
s
 

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

, 

Q
u

a
rr

y
 R

o
a

d
, 

L
a

n
c
a

s
te

r,
 L

A
1

 

T
o

 h
o

s
t 

a
n

 e
v
e

n
t 

w
h

ic
h

 e
n

a
b

le
s
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 f

ro
m

; 
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l,
 

fo
s
te

r,
 a

d
o

p
ti
o

n
, 

fi
e

ld
 w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 

C
W

D
 t

o
 e

x
p

lo
re

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
n

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 t
o

 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

C
h

ild
re

n
 L

o
o

k
e

d
 

A
ft

e
r.

  

£
2

3
7

.5
0

P
a

u
l 
H

e
g

a
rt

y
0

6
-M

a
y
-2

0
1

1

1
8

/0
5

/2
0

1
1

A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
L

o
u

is
e

 

T
a

y
lo

r

1
8

/0
5

/2
0

1
1

 C
C

 

W
in

d
e

r 
A

p
p

ro
v
a

l

1
9

/0
5

/2
0

1
1

A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
E

m
a

il 

s
e

n
t 

to
 P

a
u

l 

H
e

g
a

rt
y

A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
\A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n

1
2

\A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 

F
o

rm
.d

o
c

1
3

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d

L
a

u
ra

 G
o

o
d

fe
llo

w
, 

L
a

n
c
a

s
h

ir
e

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 R
ig

h
ts

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
, 

3
0

 

R
ib

b
le

s
d

a
le

 P
la

c
e

,

C
h

ild
re

n
 L

o
o

k
e

d
 A

ft
e

r 
a

n
d

 C
a

re
 

L
e

a
v
e

r 
C

e
le

b
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

E
v
e

n
t

£
7

,0
0

0
.0

0
L

a
u

ra
 G

o
o

d
fe

llo
w

1
8

-J
a

n
-2

0
1

2

C
o

n
fi
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 

Y
P

 A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 

1
3

/0
2

/2
0

1
2

2
3

/0
2

/2
0

1
2

A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
L

o
u

is
e

 

T
a

y
lo

r

2
3

/0
2

/2
0

1
2

A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
C

C
 

W
in

d
e

r

2
4

/0
2

/2
0

1
2

A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
E

m
a

il 

s
e

n
t 

to
 L

a
u

ra
 

G
o

o
d

fe
llo

w
 a

n
d

 

C
C

K

A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
\A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n

1
3

\G
ra

n
t

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n

C
e

le
b

ra
ti
o

n
,

P
re

s
to

n
, 

P
R

1
 3

N
A

C
C

K
a

y
E

v
e

n
t.

d
o

c

1
4

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d

P
a

u
l 
H

e
g

a
rt

y
, 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

C
L

A
, 

A
re

a
 

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 O

ff
ic

e
, 

W
h

it
e

 C
ro

s
s
 

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

, 

Q
u

a
rr

y
 R

o
a

d
, 

L
a

n
c
a

s
te

r,
 L

A
1

 

T
o

 p
ri

n
t 

L
A

C
/C

P
B

 L
it
e

ra
tu

re
 -

 

th
e

 P
le

d
g

e
£

5
7

.7
5

P
a

u
l 
H

e
g

a
rt

y
2

7
-O

c
t-

2
0

1
1

2
4

/1
1

/2
0

1
1

 S
e

n
t 

to
 L

o
u

is
e

 T
a

y
lo

r

2
2

/1
1

/2
0

1
1

 C
C

 

W
in

d
e

r 
A

p
p

ro
v
a

l

2
5

/1
1

/1
1

A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
E

m
a

il 

s
e

n
t 

to
 P

a
u

l 

H
e

g
a

rt
y

A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
\A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n

1
4

\A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 

F
o

rm
.d

o
c

1
5

In
P

ro
g

re
s

s

L
a

u
ra

 G
o

o
d

fe
llo

w
, 

L
a

n
c
a

s
h

ir
e

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 R
ig

h
ts

 

T
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 w
o

rk
 i
n

 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
n

g
 w

it
h

 c
h

ild
re

n
 

a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 l
o

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r.
  

T
h

is
 w

ill
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 i
n

v
o

lv
in

g
 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 

p
ro

d
u

c
in

g
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
a

l 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

 w
it
h

 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 

c
a

re
a

c
ro

s
s

L
a

n
c
a

s
h

ir
e

T
h

is
is

£
1

0
0

0
0

0
L

a
u

ra
G

o
o

d
fe

llo
w

2
8

N
o

v
2

0
1

1

Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

 

A
p

p
ro

v
a

l

S
e

n
t 

to
 L

o
u

is
e

 

T
a

y
lo

r

S
e

n
t 

to
 C

C
 

W
in

d
e

r

A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
\A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n

1
5

\G
ra

n
t

1
5

In
P

ro
g

re
s

s
S

e
rv

ic
e

, 
3

0
 

R
ib

b
le

s
d

a
le

 P
la

c
e

, 

P
re

s
to

n
, 

P
R

1
 3

N
A

c
a

re
a

c
ro

s
s

L
a

n
c
a

s
h

ir
e

.
T

h
is

is

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 t

a
k
e

 t
h

e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

le
a

fl
e

t 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 

p
o

s
te

rs
, 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 t

h
e

 d
ir

e
c
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

th
e

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 w

ill
 

b
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 c

h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 w

e
 a

re
 o

p
e

n
 

to
 i
d

e
a

s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 m

o
re

 

in
n

o
v
a

ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 c

re
a

ti
v
e

.

£
1

,0
0

0
.0

0
L

a
u

ra
G

o
o

d
fe

llo
w

2
8

-N
o

v
-2

0
1

1
A

p
p

ro
v
a

l

1
9

/1
2

/2
0

1
1

T
a

y
lo

r

3
0

/1
2

/2
0

1
1

W
in

d
e

r

2
0

/1
2

/2
0

1
1

1
5

\G
ra

n
t

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n

1
5

.d
o

c

Page 130



G
ra

n
t 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 A
p

p
li

c
a
ti

o
n

s

N
u

m
b

e
r

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
/ 

N
o

t 

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d

N
a

m
e

 a
n

d
 

A
d

d
re

s
s

 o
f 

G
ro

u
p

A
p

p
li

c
a

ti
o

n
 D

e
ta

il
s

A
m

o
u

n
t 

R
e

q
u

e
s

te
d

C
o

n
ta

c
t 

P
e

rs
o

n
D

a
te

 A
p

p
li

c
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

c
e

iv
e

d

D
a

te
 C

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 

b
y
 Y

o
u

n
g

 

P
e

o
p

le

D
a

te
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 

b
y
 D

ir
e

c
to

rs

D
a

te
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 

b
y
 C

h
a

ir
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

L
in

k
 t

o
 

R
e

p
o

rt

D
a

te
 s

e
n

t 
to

 

J
u

li
e

D
a

te
 P

a
id

A
m

o
u

n
t 

P
a

id
J

o
u

rn
a

l 
T

ra
n

s
fe

r 

D
e

ta
il

s

1
6

D
e

fe
rr

e
d

 

u
n

ti
l 

a
ft

e
r 

C
P

B

0
6

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

C
re

s
tm

o
o

r

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
U

n
it
, 

1
 

U
n

it
y
 W

a
y
, 

o
ff

 

H
a

s
lin

g
d

e
n

 O
ld

 

R
o

a
d

, 
R

a
w

te
n

s
ta

ll,
 

B
B

4
 8

R
R

1
5

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 a

tt
e

n
d

 

W
e

d
s
 n

ig
h

t 
a

t 
J
J
B

 f
ro

m
 b

o
th

 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
le

a
v
in

g
 c

a
re

 a
n

d
 

fo
s
te

r 
c
a

re
, 

th
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 

d
o

in
g

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

fo
o

tb
a

ll 
c
o

a
c
h

in
g

 

a
n

d
 w

ill
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

 I
 d

a
y
 

a
c
c
re

d
it
e

d
 j
u

n
io

r 
s
p

o
rt

s
 l
e

a
d

e
r 

a
w

a
rd

, 
a

n
y
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 

a
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 w
ill

 u
n

d
e

rg
o

 

F
.A

 2
5

 h
o

u
r 

ju
n

io
r 

c
o

a
c
h

in
g

 

a
w

a
rd

. 
 C

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

o
n

g
o

in
g

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
 t

h
a

t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

c
re

a
te

d

£
1

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

G
w

e
n

 M
o

n
k
, 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r,

C
re

s
tm

o
o

r 
C

R
U

2
8

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

2

1
5

/0
6

/2
0

1
2

 Y
P

 

F
in

a
l 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 -
 

n
o

t 
a

u
th

o
ri

s
e

d

1
9

/0
6

/2
0

1
2

F
u

rt
h

e
r

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 f

ro
m

 

G
w

e
n

 M
o

n
k
 s

e
n

t 

to
 L

o
u

is
e

 T
a

y
lo

r

1
9

/0
6

/2
0

1
2

F
u

rt
h

e
r

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 f

ro
m

 

G
w

e
n

 M
o

n
k
 s

e
n

t 

to
 T

o
n

y
 W

in
d

e
r

2
1

/0
6

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 s

e
n

t 

to
 G

w
e

n
 M

o
n

k
 

fo
r 

fu
rt

h
e

r 

c
la

ri
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
.

R
e

c
e

iv
e

d

A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
\A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n

1
6

\A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 

F
o

rm
.d

o
c

Page 131



G
ra

n
t

A
p

p
li
c

a
ti

o
n

N
u

m
b

e
r

N
a
m

e
 a

n
d

 

A
d

d
re

s
s

 o
f 

G
ro

u
p

A
p

p
li
c
a
ti

o
n

D
e

ta
il

s
C

o
n

ta
c

t 
P

e
rs

o
n

A
m

o
u

n
t

R
e
q

u
e
s
te

d
A

m
o

u
n

t 
R

e
c
e
iv

e
d

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

h
o

w
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 w

a
s
 U

ti
li
s
e
d

1

C
L

IC
S

,

C
o
u
n

ty
 H

a
ll,

 

P
re

s
to

n

R
e
fr

e
s
h
m

e
n
ts

 a
t 

tw
o
 c

o
u

n
ty

 

C
e

le
b

ra
ti
o
n
 E

v
e
n
ts

 

2
0
1
0

 f
o

r 
C

h
ild

re
n
 

S
u
z
y
 C

u
m

m
in

g
s
, 

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

O
ff
ic

e
r,

 B
4
 C

o
u
n

ty
 

£
3
,1

5
2
.3

2
£

3
,1

5
2
.3

2

E
v
e
n
ts

 h
e

ld
 o

n
 1

8
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
 a

n
d
 2

9
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
.

• 
N

o
m

in
e
e
s
 –

 2
3

3
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
e
re

 n
o
m

in
a
te

d
 f
o
r 

a
n
 a

w
a
rd

 

• 
N

o
m

in
e
e
s
 –

 1
7
7
 w

e
re

 i
n
v
it
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e

v
e
n
ts

• 
N

o
m

in
e
e
s
 -

 6
4
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 e

v
e
n
ts

 t
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 t
h
e
ir
 a

w
a
rd

s

• 
C

a
re

rs
 –

 6
1

• 
L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e

 C
o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

S
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 –
  
3
4

• 
In

 t
o
ta

l 
1
6
0
 s

ta
ff

, 
c
a
re

rs
, 
c
o
u
n
ty

 c
o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

, 
m

a
n

a
g
e
rs

, 
C

h
ild

re
n
 

G
ra

n
t 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 A
p

p
li
c
a
ti

o
n

s
 -

 A
p

p
ro

v
e
d

P
re

s
to

n
L

o
o
k
e

d
 A

ft
e

r 
a
n
d
 

C
a
re

 L
e
a

v
e
rs

H
a
ll,

 P
re

s
to

n
a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p

le
 L

o
o
k
e
d
 A

ft
e
r 

a
n
d
 C

a
re

 L
e
a
v
e

rs
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 

e
v
e

n
t.

• 
U

n
fo

rt
u
n
a
te

ly
 5

6
 Y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
e
re

 n
o
m

in
a
te

d
 b

u
t 
n
o
t 
in

v
it
e
d
 

to
 t
h
e
 e

v
e
n
t 
d
u
e
 t
o
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
s
p
a
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 v

e
n
u
e

2

C
re

s
tm

o
o
r

C
h
ild

re
n
's

R
e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l

U
n
it
, 

E
a
s
d
e
n

 

C
lo

u
g

h
M

o
rs

e

S
u
m

m
e
r 

fu
n
 d

a
y
 

w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 

s
ta

lls
 t

h
a
t 

g
iv

e
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 t
o
 o

u
r 

y
o
u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 o

n
 

h
e
a

lt
h
 m

a
tt
e
rs

, 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o
n
, 
h

e
a
lt
h
y
 

e
a

ti
n
g

d
ru

g
s

e
tc

to

G
w

e
n
 M

o
n
k
, 

M
a

n
a
g
e
r,

 
£
5
0
0
.0

0
£
5
0
0
.0

0

T
h
e
 m

o
n
e
y
 w

a
s
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 h

e
lp

 p
u
t 

o
n
 a

 f
u
n
 d

a
y
. 
 T

h
is

 w
a
s
 a

 h
u
g
e
 

s
u

c
c
e
s
s
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
d

 b
y
 a

ll 
th

e
 a

re
a
s
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
n
it
s
, 
s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

, 

a
ll 

th
e
 C

W
D

 u
n
it
s
 w

e
 h

a
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 s

ta
lls

 f
ro

m
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
h
e
a
lt
h

 

a
n
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
's

 r
ig

h
ts

. 
 W

e
 h

e
ld

 t
h

e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

s
 w

it
h
 t

e
a
m

s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 

C
L
A

 t
e
a
m

, 
Y

O
T

 a
n
d
 C

re
s
tm

o
o
r 

w
it
h
 C

re
s
tm

o
o
r 

w
in

n
in

g
 t
h
e
 c

u
p
!!

W
e
 a

ls
o
 r

e
le

a
s
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

1
0
0
0
 b

a
llo

o
n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 c

h
a
rg

e
d
 £

1
 a

 

b
a
llo

o
n
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 m
o
n
e
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

o
n
a
te

d
 t
o
 D

o
n
n
a

's
 d

re
a
m

 h
o
u
s
e
 

C
lo

u
g

h
,
M

o
rs

e

S
tr

e
e
t,

B
u
rn

le
y
, 
B

B
1
0

 

4
P

B

e
a

ti
n
g

,
d

ru
g

s
e
tc

to

a
llo

w
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 

to
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
h
is

 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 b

u
t 

a
ls

o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 g
o
o
d
 

ti
m

e
, 

h
a

v
e
 a

 D
J
 t
o
 

p
la

y
 m

u
s
ic

g
,

C
re

s
tm

o
o
r 

C
R

U

y

fo
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 w

it
h
 t
e
rm

in
a
l 
ill

n
e
s
s
e
s
. 
 W

e
 h

a
d
 a

 p
e
tt
in

g
 z

o
o
 ,
 a

 

g
u
n
g
e
 c

h
a
ir
 c

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 p

e
o
p
le

 p
a
id

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 s

o
m

e
o
n
e
 

g
u
n
g
e
d
 t
h
is

 w
a
s
 w

o
n
 b

y
 A

n
th

o
n
y
 M

o
o
rc

ro
ft
 a

n
d
 G

a
ry

 P
ic

k
le

s
, 
a
 

s
te

e
l 
b
a
n
d
, 
B

B
Q

, 
c
h
o
c
o
la

te
 f
o
u
n
ta

in
 a

n
d
 t
o
m

b
o
la

. 
 I
t 
w

a
s
 g

re
a
t 
to

 

s
e
e
 e

v
e
ry

o
n
e

 h
a
v
in

g
 a

 g
o
o
d
 t

im
e
 t
o
g
e
th

e
r.

  
F

o
r 

m
e
 i
t 
w

a
s
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 a

t 
it
s
 f
in

e
s
t.

5

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d

 

Y
o
u
n
g

P
e

o
p
le

's

D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

,

C
o
u
n

ty
 H

a
ll,

 

P
re

s
to

n
, 

P
R

1
 

P
ri
n
ti
n

g

"E
n

ti
tl
e
m

e
n
ts

L
e
a
fl
e
ts

" 
fo

r 
o
u
r 

L
o
o

k
e
d
 A

ft
e
r 

C
h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 C

a
re

 

L

P
e
te

r 
F

ra
n
c
is

, 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n
a
g

e
r,

 R
o
o

n
 

B
1
0
, 
C

o
u
n
ty

 H
a

ll

£
3
2
2
.0

0
£
3
2
2
.0

0
In

 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
h
a
v
in

g
 t
h
e
 l
e
a
fl
e
ts

 p
ri
n
te

d
.

P
re

s
to

n
,
P

R
1

8
R

J
L

e
a
v
e
rs

Page 132



F
o
s
te

ri
n
g

R
e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t

T
o

 s
u

p
p

le
m

e
n
t 
th

e
 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
's

 

it
t

b
d

t

T
h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 w

a
s
 t
a
s
k
e
d
 w

it
h
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 t
h
e
 

fo
s
te

ri
n
g
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
te

a
m

 i
n
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 1

,0
0
0
 e

n
q

u
ir
ie

s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
 a

n
d

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
. 
R

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 w

a
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 w

e
re

 s
e
t 
w

it
h
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 o
f 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 

tr
a
ff
ic

 t
o
 t
h
e
 w

e
b
s
it
e
 a

n
d
 e

n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 t
e
le

p
h
o
n

e
 h

e
lp

lin
e
. 
 T

h
e
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
£
1
3
,0

0
0
 g

ra
n
t 
fu

n
d
in

g
 w

a
s
 e

s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
a
n

d
 w

a
s
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 

p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
d
v
e
rt

is
in

g
 s

p
a
c
e
 a

n
d
 m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 m

a
te

ri
a
ls

 

to
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t
h
is

. 

A
 b

ro
a
d
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
ta

c
ti
c
s
 w

e
re

 u
s
e

d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

th
e
 d

e
m

o
g
ra

p
h
ic

 r
e
s
e
a
rc

h
 o

f 
b
e

h
a
v
io

u
r 

a
n
d
 p

re
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 o

f 
o
u
r 

k
e
y
 a

u
d
ie

n
c
e
. 
 A

c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 m

e
d
ia

 r
e
la

ti
o
n
s
, 

b
ro

a
d
c
a
s
t 
a
n
d
 

p
ri
n
t

a
d
v
e
rt

is
in

g
,

o
u
td

o
o
r

a
d
v
e
rt

is
in

g
,

g
ra

s
s
ro

o
ts

d
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n

o
f

7

R
e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t

a
n
d

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t

T
e
a
m

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

b
u
d
g
e
t 

in
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 m
e
e
t 

2
0

1
0
/1

1
 n

e
w

 f
o
s
te

r 

c
a
re

r 
ta

rg
e
ts

.

£
1
3
,0

0
0
.0

0
£

1
3
,0

0
0
.0

0
£
1

3
,0

0
0
.0

0

p
ri
n
t

a
d
v
e
rt

is
in

g
,
o
u
td

o
o
r

a
d
v
e
rt

is
in

g
,
g
ra

s
s
ro

o
ts

d
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n

o
f

m
a
rk

e
ti
n
g

 m
a
te

ri
a
ls

, 
d
ig

it
a

l 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 a

n
d

 i
n
te

rn
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
.

K
e
y
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
:

• 
T

h
e
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 i
ts

 k
e
y
 t
a
rg

e
t 
w

it
h
 a

 f
in

a
l 
to

ta
l 
o
f 
1
,1

1
3
 

fo
s
te

ri
n
g
 e

n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 

• 
A

 2
3
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 u

n
iq

u
e
 v

is
it
o
rs

 t
o
 t
h
e
 w

e
b
s
it
e

 w
h
ic

h
 l
e
d
 t
o
 a

n
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e

 o
f 
7
4
.5

 o
n
lin

e
 e

n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 e

a
c
h
 m

o
n
th

.

• 
T

e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 e

n
q

u
ir
ie

s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 f

ro
m

 a
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e

 o
f 
3
5
 u

p
 t
o
 6

8
 

c
a
lls

 p
e

r 
m

o
n
th

 b
y
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
 q

u
a
rt

e
r.

 

• 
M

o
re

 p
e
o
p
le

 n
o

w
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
's

 k
e
y
 c

h
a
n
n
e
ls

 

th
a
n

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

w
h
ic

h
in

d
ic

a
te

s
th

a
t

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s

a
re

m
o
re

th
a
n

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

w
h
ic

h
in

d
ic

a
te

s
th

a
t
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s

a
re

m
o
re

m
e
m

o
ra

b
le

 a
n

d
/o

r 
fo

c
u
s
e
d
 t
o

 m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 c
h
a
n
n
e
ls

.

9

C
re

s
tm

o
o
r

C
h
ild

re
n
's

R
e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l

U
n
it
, 

1
 U

n
it
y
 

W
a

y
, 
o

ff
 

H
a
s
lin

g
d

e
n

O
ld

 R
o
a

d
, 

R
a
w

te
n
s
ta

ll

C
re

s
tm

o
o
r 

w
o
u
ld

 

lik
e

 t
o
 s

ta
rt

 a
n
 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
 w

it
h
 

B
u
rn

le
y
 Y

o
u
th

 

T
h
e
a

tr
e
 t
h

a
t 
w

ill
 

s
e
e

 t
h
e
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 o
f 

C
re

s
tm

o
o
r 

e
x
p
re

s
s
 

th
e

m
s
e
lv

e
s

th
ro

u
g
h

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 

m
e
d
ia

. 
A

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 

o
f
th

e
p
ro

je
c
t
th

e

A
le

x
a
n
d
e
r

B
o
rc

h
e

rt
, 
S

o
c
ia

l 

P
e
d

a
g
o
g
u
e

£
6
,4

7
5
.0

0
£

6
,4

7
5
.0

0

O
n
 t
h
e
 1

9
th

 a
n
d
 2

6
th

 o
f 
M

a
y
 2

0
1

1
th

e
 f
ir
s
t 
tw

o
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 E

a
s
t 
L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 h

a
v
e
 h

a
p
p
e
n
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
s
e
 w

e
re

 

c
o
lo

u
rf

u
l,
 i
n
te

re
s
ti
n
g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 t
h
e
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
h
o
ro

u
g
h
ly

 

e
n
jo

y
e
d
. 
T

h
e
re

 w
e
re

 s
o
m

e
 g

a
m

e
s
 t
o
 g

e
t 
to

 k
n
o
w

 e
a
c
h
 o

th
e
r,

 a
 

to
u
r 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e

 t
h
e
a
tr

e
 a

n
d
 s

o
m

e
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
s
 a

ro
u
n
d
 w

h
a
t 
th

e
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
a
n

t 
to

 d
o
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u

tu
re

 s
e
s
s
io

n
s
. 
F

ir
s
t 
p
h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
s
 

w
e
re

 t
a
k
e
n
 o

f 
a
n
d

 b
y
 t
h
e
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

; 
m

a
te

ri
a
l 
w

a
s
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 f
o
r 

a
 p

la
y
 a

n
d
 /
o
r 

p
o
e
m

. 
 T

h
e
 y

o
u
n

g
 p

e
o
p
le

 e
x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 w

h
a
t 
th

e
y
 

w
a
n
t 
to

 d
o
 (

i.
e
. 

fi
lm

in
g
) 

a
n
d
 t
h
is

 i
s
 n

o
w

 p
re

p
a
re

d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 

R
a
w

te
n
s
ta

ll,

B
B

4
 8

R
R

o
f
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t
th

e

y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p

le
 w

ill
 

h
a
v
e

 p
ro

d
u

c
e
d
 a

 

D
V

D
 t

h
a

t 
s
h

o
w

s
 "

A
 

lif
e
 i
n

 t
h
e
 d

a
y
 o

f 

C
re

s
tm

o
o
r"

.

w
a
n
t

to
d
o

(i
.e

.
fi
lm

in
g
)

a
n
d

th
is

is
n
o
w

p
re

p
a
re

d
fo

r
th

e
n
e
x
t

s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 t

o
 c

o
m

e
.

N
e
w

s
p
a
p
e
r 

re
p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 e

v
e
n
t.

Page 133



1
0

H
a

n
n
a

h

P
e
a
k
e
, 
C

Y
P

 

D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

,

C
o
u
n

ty
 H

a
ll,

 

P
re

s
to

n
, 

P
R

1
 

8
R

J

W
o
rk

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

a
n
d

 e
n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

lo
o

k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e

o
p
le

H
a
n
n
a

h
 P

e
a
k
e

, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 L
e
a
d

 -
 

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d

 

Y
o
u
n
g

 P
e
o
p
le

's
 

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

£
2
,5

3
0
.0

0
£

2
,5

3
0
.0

0

K
e

y
 A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
:

1
. 

 F
a
c
ili

ta
ti
n
g
 a

tt
e

n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

t 
C

P
B

.

2
. 

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
o
 a

tt
e
n
d
 L

a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 Y

o
u
th

 C
o
u
n
c
il.

3
. 

 Y
o
u
th

 P
ro

o
fi
n
g

 L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 C

L
A

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

.

4
. 

 C
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 c

o
n

s
u
lt
in

g
 w

it
h
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 

re
g
a
rd

in
g
 t
h
e
 C

iC
C

.

5
. 

 C
iC

C
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
.

1
1

H
a

n
n
a

h

P
e
a
k
e
, 
C

Y
P

 

D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

,

C
o
u
n

ty
 H

a
ll,

 

P
re

s
to

n
, 

P
R

1
 

8
R

J

T
o

 d
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 p

ri
n
t 

s
e
v
e

ra
l 
c
h

ild
re

n
 

a
n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 

fr
ie

n
d
ly

d
o

c
u
m

e
n

ts
.

H
a
n
n
a

h
 P

e
a
k
e

, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 L
e
a
d

 -
 

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d

 

Y
o
u
n
g

 P
e
o
p
le

's
 

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

£
2
,4

8
5
.0

0
£

2
,4

8
5
.0

0

T
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
is

 s
ti
ll 

in
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 b

u
t 
th

e
 p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

d
o

c
u
m

e
n
t 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 'Y

o
u
th

 p
ro

o
fe

d
' a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

e
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 t

e
a
m

 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 a

n
d
 p

ri
n
te

d
. 
T

h
e
 A

-Z
 

d
o

c
u
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
's

 v
e
rs

io
n
 a

re
 s

ti
ll 

b
e
in

g
 d

ra
ft
e
d
 a

s
 t
h
e
y
 

n
e

e
d
 t
o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
re

c
e
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 i
n
 l
e
g
is

la
ti
o
n
/ 
g
o

v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

g
u

id
a
n
c
e
.

8
J

g
u

d
a

c
e

1
2

P
a
u
l 
H

e
g

a
rt

y
, 

S
e

rv
ic

e

M
a
n
a

g
e
r 

C
L
A

, 

A
re

a

E
d
u

c
a
ti
o
n

O
ff
ic

e
, 
W

h
it
e

 

C
ro

s
s

T
o
 h

o
s
t 
a
n
 e

v
e
n
t 

w
h
ic

h
 e

n
a

b
le

s
 

m
a
n

a
g

e
rs

 f
ro

m
; 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l,
 f

o
s
te

r,
 

a
d
o

p
ti
o
n
, 

fi
e
ld

 

w
o
rk

 a
n
d
 C

W
D

 t
o
 

e
x
p
lo

re

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
a
n
d

P
a
u
l 
H

e
g
a
rt

y
, 

S
e
rv

ic
e

 M
a
n
a
g

e
r 

£
2
3
7
.5

0
£
2
3
7
.5

0

T
h
e
 e

v
e
n
t 
w

a
s
 v

e
ry

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
w

it
h
 o

v
e
r 

3
0
 m

a
n
a

g
e
rs

 a
tt
e
n
d
in

g
 

fr
o
m

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a

l 
h
o
m

e
s
 (

b
o
th

 m
a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 a
n
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
 w

it
h
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
),

  
fo

s
te

ri
n
g
, 
 a

d
o
p
ti
o
n
, 
 I
n
d
e
p
e
n

d
e
n
t 
re

v
ie

w
in

g
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 (
IA

S
/C

W
D

/C
L
A

/L
C

) 
a
n
d
 a

 t
e
a
m

 

m
a
n
a
g
e
r.

  
 T

h
e
 e

v
e
n
t 
w

a
s
 a

ls
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e

 a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 o

f 

C
o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

T
o
n
y
 W

in
d
e
r 

a
n

d
 L

o
u
is

e
 T

a
y
lo

r 
(D

ir
e
c
to

r)
. 
 T

h
e

 

e
v
e
n
t 
lo

o
k
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 o

f 
in

tr
o
d
u
c
in

g
 a

 

c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 c

a
re

 c
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 a

n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 w

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

H
a
n
n
a
h
 (

P
e
a
k
e
) 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 p

ro
d
u

c
in

g
. 
 A

 r
e
p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e

 

C
h
ild

re
n
 S

o
c
ie

ty
 a

ls
o
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
d
 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 r

e
c
e
n
t 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 

b
id

 t
o
 d

ri
v
e
 t
h
is

 a
g

e
n
d
a
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 a
n

d
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 n

e
x
t 

s
te

p
s
. 
  
D

e
ta

ile
d

 

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
 d

id
 t
a

k
e
 p

la
c
e
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g
 H

a
n
n
a
h
's

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 r
o
le

 a
n
d
 

th
e

c
o
n
c
e
rn

th
e

g
ro

u
p

e
x
p
re

s
s
e
d

a
t
th

e
la

c
k

o
f

a
d

is
ti
n
c
t
fo

c
u
s

o
n

C
ro

s
s

E
d
u

c
a
ti
o
n

C
e

n
tr

e
,

Q
u
a
rr

y
 R

o
a
d

, 

L
a
n

c
a
s
te

r,

L
A

1
 4

X
Q

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
a
n
d

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

p
la

n
 t
o

 s
u
p
p

o
rt

 t
h
e
 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o
n

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 L

o
o
k
e
d
 

A
ft
e
r.

C
L
A

th
e

c
o
n
c
e
rn

th
e

g
ro

u
p

e
x
p
re

s
s
e
d

a
t
th

e
la

c
k

o
f
a

d
is

ti
n
c
t

fo
c
u
s

o
n

th
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

a
g
e
n
d
a

. 
  
H

a
n
n
a
h
 s

p
o
k
e
 t
o
 t
h
is

 a
n
d
 i
t 

w
a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
I 

w
o
u
ld

 d
is

c
u
s
s
 t
h

is
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

w
it
h
 L

o
u
is

e
 T

a
y
lo

r.
  
In

 

c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 I
 t
h
in

k
 t
h
e
 e

v
e
n
t 
w

a
s
 a

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
. 
 I
t 
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 s

o
m

e
 

c
le

a
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
is

 e
s
s
e
n

ti
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
s
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

n
d
 t
h

e
 v

ie
w

s
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e

 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
h
e
y
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
, 
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 

a
n
d
 w

id
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e

 d
e
liv

e
ry

. 
 I
n
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 I
 t
h
in

k
 t

h
e
 e

v
e
n
t 
w

a
s
 a

 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
. 
 I
t 
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 s

o
m

e
 c

le
a
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d

 p
ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
is

 e
s
s
e
n

ti
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
s
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
h
e
y
 

re
c
e
iv

e
, 
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 a
n
d
 w

id
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

.

L
a
u
ra

1
3

G
o
o
d
fe

llo
w

,

L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 R
ig

h
ts

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
, 
3
0
 

R
ib

b
le

s
d
a
le

P
la

c
e
, 
P

re
s
to

n
, 

P
R

1
 3

N
A

C
h
ild

re
n
 L

o
o
k
e
d
 A

ft
e
r 

a
n
d
 C

a
re

 L
e
a
v
e
r 

C
e
le

b
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
E

v
e
n
t

L
a
u
ra

 G
o
o
d
fe

llo
w

£
7
,0

0
0
.0

0
£

7
,0

0
0
.0

0

Page 134



1
4

P
a
u
l 
H

e
g
a
rt

y
, 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

C
L
A

, 
A

re
a
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 O

ff
ic

e
, 

W
h
it
e
 C

ro
s
s
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

C
e
n
tr

e
, 
Q

u
a
rr

y
 

R
o
a
d
, 
L
a
n
c
a
s
te

r,
 

L
A

1
 4

X
Q

T
o
 p

ri
n
t 
L
A

C
/C

P
B

 

L
it
e
ra

tu
re

 -
 t
h
e
 P

le
d
g
e

P
a
u
l 
H

e
g
a
rt

y
, 

S
e
rv

ic
e

 M
a
n
a
g

e
r 

C
L
A

£
5
7
.7

5
£
5
7
.7

5

A
n
th

o
n
y

T
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
a
im

s
 t
o
 

in
v
o
lv

e
 L

a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
's

 

c
h
ild

re
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

in
 

c
re

a
ti
n
g
 a

 g
ia

n
t 
p
a
tc

h
 

w
o
rk

 q
u
ilt

 t
h
a
t 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 t
h
e
ir
 v

ie
w

s
 

1
7

A
n
th

o
n
y

M
o
o
rc

ro
ft
, 
2
9
 

S
o
u
th

 A
v
e
n
u
e
, 

M
o
re

c
a
m

b
e
, 
L
A

4
 

5
R

J

th
o
u
g
h
ts

 f
e
e
lin

g
s
 o

n
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

, 

b
e
 t
h
is

 R
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l,
 

F
o
s
te

r,
 S

h
o
rt

 B
re

a
k
 o

r 

le
a
v
in

g
 C

a
re

. 
 A

llo
w

in
g
 

c
h
ild

re
n
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 

a
 v

o
ic

e
, 
re

g
a
rd

le
s
s
 o

f 

th
e
ir
 b

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
, 
a
g
e
, 

a
b
ili

ty
 o

r 

c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
.

A
n
th

o
n
y
 M

o
o
rc

ro
ft

£
8
,0

0
0
.0

0
£

8
,0

0
0
.0

0

T
O

T
A

L
£
4

3
,7

5
9
.5

7

Page 135



G
ra

n
t

A
p

p
li
c
a
ti

o
n

N
u

m
b

e
r

N
a
m

e
 a

n
d

 

A
d

d
re

s
s
 o

f 

G
ro

u
p

A
p

p
li
c
a
ti

o
n

D
e
ta

il
s

C
o

n
ta

c
t 

P
e
rs

o
n

A
m

o
u

n
t

R
e
q

u
e
s
te

d
R

e
a
s
o

n
 f

o
r 

N
o

t 
A

p
p

ro
v
e
d

3

S
o
c
ia

l

P
e
d
a
g
o
g
y

T
a
s
k
 F

o
rc

e
, 

C
re

s
tm

o
o
re

C
h
ild

re
n
's

R
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l

U
n
it
, 
E

a
s
d
e
n
 

C
lo

u
g
h
,

M
o
rs

e
 S

tr
e
e
t,
 

B
u
rn

le
y
, 
B

B
1
0
 

4
P

B

S
e
e
in

g
 T

h
e
 

H
id

d
e
n
 –

 a
 

p
h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
y

p
ro

je
c
t,
 t
h
a
t 

c
u
lm

in
a
te

s
 i
n
 

p
u
b
lis

h
in

g
 a

 b
o
o
k

A
le

x
a
n
d
e
r

B
o
rc

h
e
rt

, 
S

o
c
ia

l 

P
e
d
a
g
o
g
u
e
/

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t

£
2
,0

7
5
.0

0

D
e
fe

rr
e
d
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 s

ti
ll 

u
n
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
h
o
w

 t
h
is

 

lin
k
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 c

a
re

 c
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 w

id
e
r 

d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

's
 

c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

.

T
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 C
L
A

 t
o
 

h
a
v
e
 S

p
a
n
is

h
 

fi
e
s
ta

 t
y
p
e

 m
e
a

l,

G
ra

n
t 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 A
p

p
li
c
a
ti

o
n

s
 -

 N
o

t 
A

p
p

ro
v
e
d

4

H
a
v
e
rh

o
lt

C
h
ild

re
n
's

H
o
m

e
, 
2
4
A

 

H
a
v
e
rh

o
lt

C
lo

s
e
, 
C

o
ln

e
, 

B
B

8
 9

S
N

fi
e
s
ta

ty
p
e

m
e
a
l,

v
is

it
in

g
 t
h
e
 R

o
m

a
n
 

A
m

p
h
it
h
e
a
tr

e
 n

e
a
r 

w
h
e
re

 w
e
 a

re
 

s
ta

y
in

g
, 
a
 d

a
y
 o

u
t 

a
t 
a
 W

a
te

r 
P

a
rk

 

a
n
d
 a

 d
a
y
 o

u
t 
a
t 
a
 

T
h
e
m

e
 P

a
rk

 a
n
d
 

fi
n
a
lly

 r
id

e
s
 o

n
 a

 

B
a
n
a
n
a
 B

o
a
t 
o
r 

s
o
m

e
th

in
g
 s

im
ila

r 

w
h
ils

t 
o
n
 h

o
lid

a
y
 i
n
 

S
p
a
in

A
la

n
 H

o
rn

b
y
, 

R
e
g
is

te
re

d

M
a
n
a
g
e
r,

H
a
v
e
rh

o
lt
 C

C
H

£
2
,0

0
0
.0

0

T
h
e
 g

ra
n
t 
is

 n
o
t 
a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 a

s
 i
t 
is

 n
o
t 
a
n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 u
s
e
 o

f 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

a
re

n
ti
n
g
 B

o
a
rd

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 o

r 
ti
e
s
 i
n
 w

it
h
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 

C
C

Y
P

 P
la

n
 a

n
d
 i
n
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 c

lim
a
te

 w
o
u
ld

 m
e
a
n
 t
h
a
t 

C
L
A

 a
rg

u
a
b
ly

 a
re

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 o

v
e
r 

a
n
d
 a

b
o
v
e
 w

h
a
t 
o
th

e
rs

 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
  
a
n
d
 i
t 
s
u
b
s
id

is
e
s
 s

ta
ff
. 
 T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
it
 t
o
 

s
e
t 
a
 p

re
c
e
d
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

is
 n

a
tu

re
.

Page 136



6

H
a
v
e
rh

o
lt

C
h
ild

re
n
's

H
o
m

e
, 
2
4
A

 

H
a
v
e
rh

o
lt

C
lo

s
e
, 
C

o
ln

e
, 

B
B

8
 9

S
N

T
o
 f
u
n
d
 a

 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
to

ry
 a

t 

th
e
 b

a
c
k
 o

f 
th

e
 

h
o
u
s
e

M
is

s
 S

a
ra

h
 H

ill
, 

A
s
s
is

ta
n
t

M
a
n
a
g
e
r,

H
a
v
e
rh

o
lt
 C

C
H

£
3
0
,0

0
0
.0

0

It
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 i
n
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
o
 s

u
b
s
id

is
e
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 o

f 
th

is
 k

in
d
 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t
h
e
re

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 i
n
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
fu

n
d
s
 .
to

 c
o
v
e
r 

s
im

ila
r 

re
q
u
e
s
ts

 f
ro

m
 o

th
e
r 

h
o
m

e
s
. 
 T

h
e
 l
in

k
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
q
u
e
s
t 
a
n
d
 

th
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

's
 P

la
n
 i
s
 t
e
n
u
o
u
s
. 
 I
t 
w

o
u
ld

n
't 

b
e
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
o
 s

u
b
s
id

is
e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
 s

ta
ff
 a

n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

rg
u
a
b
ly

 o
th

e
r 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 i
n
 s

u
c
h
 a

n
 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 d

o
w

n
tu

rn
 c

o
u
ld

 n
o
t 
a
ff
o
rd

.

Page 137



Page 138


	Agenda
	2 Notes of the Meetings held on 12 June and 26 July 2012
	Minutes 26/07/2012

	8 Government's Adoption Plan (5 mins)
	10 Performance Indicators (5 mins)
	Lancashire CLA Information

	16 Grant Funding Applications

